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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Eurocastle Investment Limited owns and invests primarily in German
commercial property. The Company is Euro denominated and listed on
Euronext Amsterdam, under the symbol “ECT” and on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange, under the symbol “EUIL” Eurocastle is managed by

an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC.




financial
operational

Operating Data

(in €000, except per share data)

Year Ended

31 December 2007

Year Ended

31 December 2006

Ner profir after taxation

Earnings per weighted average basic share

Earnings per weighted average diluted share

Funds from operations (FFO) (as defined on page 18)
FFO per weighted average basic share

FFO per weighted average diluted share

Dividend per share

Balance Sheet Data

(in €000, except per share data)

134,915
2.12
2.06

186,286
2.92
2.84
1.95

As at

31 December 2007

143,819
3.20
3.08

74,708
1.66
1.60
1.56

As ac

31 December 2006

Coinmercial property portfolio
Debr investment portfolio

Total assets

Net asset value per ordinary share

5,171,086
2,059,753
7,608,195

23.05

3,308,872
1,988,677
5,662,380

24.73
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SHAREHOLDERS

2007 was a year of concrases for Eurocastle. The first half of the year saw continued growth in our businesses. We grew
our German commercial real estate assets to 591 properties with €5.2 billion in value, making ours one of the largest
and highest quality porifotios of any listed property company in Germany. The secand half was overshadowed by the
volatility in the capital markets, which has continued into 2008, This has had rhe grearest impact on our European
real estate debt business, which represents €2.1 billion of our assets, or ©.2% of our Net Asser Value as of 31 December
2007 (€2.11 per share). These types of disruptions generally create opportunities, but in the short term, our focus has
been on preserving and creating liquidity and reducing short-term funding risks. In this environment, even a small
amount of shorter-term financing can be problemarie, but our strategy of generally investing in stable, cash flowing
assets and tocking in longer-rerm, matched financing has served us well in chis volatile peried.

Financial Results

Our Funds from Operations (FFO) for 2007 toraled £186.3 million or €2.92 per share compared o €1.66 last year,
an increase per share of 76%. We paid toral dividends of €1.95 per share in 2007 as compared wich €1.56 per share
in 2006. Our Net Asser Value ended the year at €23.05 per share, down 6.8% year on year, primarily as 2 resulc of
non-cash mark-to-market decreases in the value of our Buropean real estate debr investments.

Real Estate Business

Overall, our core German commercial real estate business put in a solid performance and the underlying markets
continued to improve in 2007, following the strength of che overall German economy. GDP growth in Germany
was 2.5% and the unemployment rate was 8.1%, its lowest level since 1992, as the country has continued o post
record trade surpluses. In the commercial real estate markets, we have seen increases in take-up and prime rents and
reductions in vacancies across the major office markets in Germany reflecting the increased demand for office space.
Prime rents are up 4.7% year on year in the “Top 5’ office markets, and vacancy is down 8%.

We view our portfolio as having rwo categorics of assers: long-term leased office and retail properties (approximarely
G0% by value), which provide stable and growing cash flow, and ‘value added’ assers (approximarely 40% by value)
which have potential upside through active management, repositioning and lease up. Over time we expect 1o sell assecs
that we feel have limited furcher upside, are non-core assets classes or are in peripheral markecs.

The average lease term of aur partfolia is 6.1 years; however, we need to remain active in leasing up space thar is
currently vacant or coming up for renewal. Portfolio occupancy increased from 86.3% at the end of 2006 {on a
pro forma basis), to 88.4% at 31 December 2007, In 2007 Eurocascle signed 684 commercial leases for approximarely
228,000 square metres of space, including approximately 84,000 square metres of new leases. Heading into 2008
Eurocastle has already signed 36,000 square metres of new leases and has a further 27,000 square metres of new leases
and 13,000 square metres of renewals cusrently under negoriation.



Debt Business
We only invest in European assets; however, the dislocations in the global credit markews wok its toll on our real

estate debt business last year. Although our credic performance was good (44 securities upgraded as compared wich
only 5 downgraded), overall spread widening led to significant murk-to-marker losses in our real estate securities,
Oun the positive side, our term nan-recourse CDO financing has significant embedded value. As of year end we bave
€2.0 billion of debe liabilitics with an average cost of Eure-libor + 57 basis points financing locked in for an average life
of 6.4 years, as compared with an average life of our existing assets of 4.4 vears. As these assets prepay or mature, we
should be well positioned to reinvest the proceeds in higher quality assers with higher yields, which will add to the
growth of vur earnings.

Financing

As the capital markets became more volatile during the year, we shifted our focus from growth o preserving and
creating liquidity and reducing short-term {funding risks. We have made good progress on this front. As of year end we
had over €146 million of cash, of which over C100 million was unresiricied, and undrawn working capiwal facilities
of €155 million. During rhe year we eliminared all ‘mark-to-market’ or ‘repe’ debr relating o the debr business.
As for our real estate porefolio, we have only a limited amounr of short-term debr. and we are highly focused on its
refinancing, paydown and extension. In the fourth quarser, we reduced our dividend substanrially, which will allow us
to continue to add 10 liquidicy. Overall, even in a challenging environment, we believe we are in a solid posicion,

Qutiook and Strategy
The overall outlook for the business is positive. The German real estate markes continues to show strength and

opportunities abound in the currently dislocated debt markets.

However, the performance of out share price has been disappeinting, to say the least. Our focus in 2008 will be
not only improve the operating performance of our business, but to alse attempt 1o close the gap between what we
belicve is the underlying value of our assets and the valuation of our company by the markets. We expect to achieve
this hy selective sales of assets, refinancings, and aliocating proceeds 1o optimize our capital structure and return cash

o sharcholders.

Thank you for your continued support.

. O

Wesley K. Edens
Chairman
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MARKET REVIEW




The German commercial property markets performed well in 2007 with increases in rake-

up and prime rents and reductions in vacancies across the major office markets in Germany.
Rising employment in Germany, with rthe unemployment rate at its lowest level since
1992, is continuing to have a positive impact on the demand for office space. Compared to
the year ended 31 December 2006, the tenant turnover in the top five office markers
increased by 15.3%. Prime rents and average rents also increased on average 4.7% and
2.2%, respectively, year on vear. The positive economic rrend was clearly visible in the
reduction of the vacancy rate to 9.3%, an 8.0% decrease, in the five major markets. With
the development pipeline continuing to be weak, specularive office supply through 2010 is

expected to remain at historically low levels of less than 1.0% per annum of toral stock.

Transaction volume in the German market increased from €49.5 billion in 2006 to an all-time high of
£€54.7 billion in 2007. Afrer a slowdown of investmenr activities in the third quarter, che marker reporced

more than €13.2 billion of commercial real estare transactions in the last quarrer of 2007,

EURQCASTLE INVESTMENT LIMITED 2007 ANNUAL REPORT # 5
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PORTFOLIO

At 31 December 2007, Eurocastle owned a €5.2 billion portfolio of commercial
property investments which comprised 591 properties with approximately
2.2 million square meters (sqm) of lertable space. The portfolio had a total
occupancy of 88.4%, and a weighted average remaining lcase term of
6.1 years. The Group derives 65% of its rental income from the five major
German markets, compared to 52% at 31 December 2006. The increased
concentration in the top five markets is consistent with Eurocastle’s focus on

class A office space in those markets.

In the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group signed 684 commercial leases for approximartely 228,000
sqm of space, including approximately 84.000 sqm of new leases. Also included is 69,000 sqm of renewals
of leases with major bank and other office anchor tenants which were due to expire at the end of 2007.
Taking into account che sale of non-core assets and the purchase of fully occupied retail properties during
the quarter, the portfolio occupancy increased from 86.3% at the end of 2006 (on a pro forma basis for the
Mars acquisition), o 88.4% at 31 December 2007.



During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group grew irs real estate investmens portfolio by €1.9

billion from €3.3 billion to €5.2 billion. Ar the end of February 2007, the Group completed the acquisition
of two portfolios of German comnereial propertics for all-in purchase prices of €2.2 billion and €53 million.
The Group also added to its rewail portfolio by acquiring 45 properties for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately €139 million representing an NOI* yield on in-place renral income of approximatcly 6.5%.
These properties are mostly recently developed retail assers, generally in grocery. discounter or supermarker
formats, and have an aggregate lettable area of approximately 87,100 sqm, They currently benefit from
almost 99.4% occupancy. In-place leases have a weighted average lease term of approximarely 11.4 years and

over 93.4% of income is derived from national retailers including Edeka, Kaufland, REWE. Plus and Aldi.

The Group sold a number of non-core properties in the year ended 31 December 2007, In the second and
third quarters of the year, the Group completed the sale of a portlolio of 77 properties for a gross sale price
of €314 million. Toral nee gains on sale of these propertics were €27.8 million, During che fourch quarter,
the Group completed the sale of the Kudamm Karree building in Berlin which it acquired during 2007 as
pare of the Mars portfolio. The property is a redevelopment project and was pare of the Group's non-core
portfolio and was sold for a gross sale price of €155 million. In addition, the Group sold the Promenadeplarz
building in Munich, part of the Drive portfolio, for a gross sale price of €54 million o a private investor.

Total net gains on sale of these properties, recognised in the fourth quarter, were €27.7 million,

*Net Opesating Incame (NOI) represents gross vental inconte less net servive charge expenses und property
vperating expentses on an anmualised basis, excluding the inverement properies held for sale,
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PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW

Commercial Property Portfolio Overview*

As at As at

(in €'000, excepr for percentages) 31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Investment properties at cost {(including held for sale} 5,118,109 3,203,042
Investment properties at fair value™ 5,156,412 3,283,072
Fair value of finunce leases 26,709 25,800
Total investment in commercial property 5,183,121 3,308,872
Weighted average NOI™* yield on cost 5.5% 5.7%
Weighted average NOI*™** yield on carrying value 5.5% 5.5%
Weighted average liability cost 4.6% 4.4%
Weighted average net spread 0.9% 1.3%

Investment properiy defined in Note 2.

" Uhe invessment value above excludes €24.9 million (31 December 2006: €25.8 million) relating to finance leases on the bead leases (Note 16) and includes
€12.0 million of capitalised tenant incentives and leasing commissions, included within other asiers, The finance leases have nat been included in the property
mluations shown in the following table braded Investment Property— Viluation Dita.

***Ner Operating Incarme (NOI) represents gross rentul income less net service charge expenses and prapersy operating experues on an annualised basis, exciuding
the investment properties held for sale.

The tables starting on page nine show the split of real estate property investments by use and geographical

locarion as at 31 December 2007. The occupancy and lease expiry informartion in the tables below reflect

the benefir of a rental guarantee an the Mars portfolio on approximately 95,000 square meters of currently

vacant space, which as at 31 December 2007 gencrated annualised income of €23.7 million. The rental

guarantee is due on a monchly basis in relation w certain vacant or under leased assets, subject ro a maximum

total payment of €40 million {including service charge income) or five years.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had signed 109 new leases for approximarely €3.0 million of rental
income per annum on approximately 25,000 square meters of vacant space, which will become effective

during 2008. These leases have not been included in che tables on page nine.




RENTAL DATA

By Use Passing Rens”
Letrable Occupancy  £'million € per sqm/
Use (sqm) % Annual % month
Office 1,246,485 84.9% 178.0 58.0% 14.0
Rerail 483,152 97.2% 62.2 20.3% L1.0
Bank Hall 113,621 97.6% 20.4 6.6% 5.4
Grher 405,894 86.0% 46.5 15.1% k.1
Total portfolio 2,249,152 88.4% 307.1 100.0% 12.9
By Location Passing Rent®
Leuable Occupancy  €'million € per sqm/
Location (sgm) % Annual % month
Frankfurt 567,818 92.3% 107.4 35.0% 17.1
Munich 214,395 83.2% 345 11,2% 16.1
Hamburg 127.369 95.8% 23.3 7.6% 159
Berlin 102,167 88.4% 16.1 5.2% 14.8
Diisseldorf 107,580 93.4% 18.1 5.9% [5.0
Subtotal—top 5 markets 1,119,329 90.7% 199.4 64.9% 16.4
Remaining West 894,428 88.6% 920.6 29.5% 9.5
Remaining East 235,395 76.6% 17.1 5.6% 7.9
Total portfolio 2,249,152 88.4% 307.1 100.0% 12,9

“Passing rens is defined as the annsal gross rental income (including rental guarantee income) at the period end, excluding the net effects of straight lining for lease incentives.

EXPIRY DATA

P'assing Rent”

By Use (€'million)
Average

Use Lease Term Yri Yr2-3 Yrd4-6 Yr7-10  Yrl0+
Office 4.9 327 29.3 53.0 44 .0 19.0
Retail 3.0 2.2 5.2 14.1 20.7 20.0
Bank Hall 0.6 0.1 4.0 3.3 9.3 3.8
Ocher 8.2 5.9 8.2 10.3 9.1 13.0

Total portfolio 6.1 409 46.7 80.7 83.1 55.8

Passing Rent”

By Location Average (€'million)

Location Lease Term | Yr2-3 Yr4-6  Yr7-10  Yr 10+
Frankfurt 5.7 18.2 12.0 33.9 29.6 13.8
Munich 6.0 9.7 48 12,1 2.6 5.3
Hamburg 57 4.6 6.8 3.5 1.0 7.4
Berlin 4.4 2.5 3.9 3.2 5.5 1.0
Diisseldorf 9.1 0.4 1.3 6.6 0.7 9.0

Subtotal—top 5 markets 6.0 354 288 59.3 39.4 36.5
Remaining West 6.7 5.2 14.5 17.7 355 [8.0
Remaining East 5.9 0.3 3.4 3.7 8.2 1.3

Total portfolio 6.1 409 467 80.7 83.1 55.8

“Pasting rent iy defincd as the nnnual gross renial incomne (including rental guaranice incomne) ar the period end, excluding the nee effects of straight lining for lease incentives.
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VALUATION DATA

Gross Net NOI NOI
Lettable Property  Property % of Renwl  Operating  Yieldon  Yield on
Space Valuadon Cast Portfolio  lucome Income Cost Valuation
Markets Propertics (sqm) €m* €m"* €mn €m €m % %
Top 5 markets
Frankfurt 53 567,818 1,868 1,848 36.1% 108.2 99.8 5.4% 5.3%
Berlin 11 102,167 286 270 5.3% 16.1 14.9 5.5% 5.2%
Hamburg 16 127,369 398 404 7.9% 24.0 21.9 5.4% 5.5%
Disseldorf 7 107,580 356 357 7.0% 18.2 16.8 4.7% 4.7%
Munich 17 214,395 624 649 12.7% 34.6 322 5.0% 5.2%
Subtotal—
top 5 markets 104 1,119,329 3,532 3,528 69.0% 2011 185.6 5.3% 5.3%
Remaining West 382 894,428 1,392 1,371 26.7% 91.0 82.1 6.0% 5.9%
Remaining East 105 235,395 232 219 4.3% 17.1 15.2 6.9% 6.6%
Total portfolio 591 2,249,152 5,156 5,118 100.0% 309.2 282.9 5.5% 5.5%

“Vhe above valuarion does not include €24.9 million relating to head leases.
“Includes leasing commissions and tenant incentives disclosed separately 1n other assets.

Financing

The Group continues to finance its core real escace portfolio with fixed rate term loans, which has substantially eliminated
its exposure to increased interest rates. This is consistent with the objective of locking in the spread berween che yield on its
investments and the cost of financing those investments.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s €5.2 billion real estate portfolio was financed with €3.8 billion of non-recourse loans wirh a
weighted average maturity of 5.5 years. €3.4 billion of the total loan financings have maturities falling between September 2012
and November 2017. The non-core part of the Mars portfolio, towlling €606.5 million, is currendly financed with a loan for
€402.9 million maruring in July 2008. Since year-end, the Group sold one property from the non-core portfolio for net proceeds
of approximately €57 million which has been used to paydown the loan to approximarely €346 million. The Group is currently in

advanced discussions with the lender and other banks to re-finance this loan prior to its marurity in July.

German Tax Reform

In July 2007, Germany’s Bundesrat approved the Corporate Tax Reform Act 2008. Cienerally the tax reform measures are effective

on | January 2008 for all German taxpayers. The key points refevant to the Group are:

* Reduction of corporate income tax from 26.4% 1o 15.8%, and reduction of trade rax

+ Non-deducribility of erade tax

* Abalition of dectining-balances depreciation

* Introduction of “General interest limitation” rules, replacing existing thin-capiralisation rules, resulting in anr annual cap on
allowable interest deductions

» Amendment of trade tax provisions for interest and equivalent expenses

Due to the general interest limitarion rules limiring the tax deducribility of inrerest and certain other expenses, the effective
tax rate for the Group has increased for 2008. However, the Group restructured its subsidiarics in order to rake advantage of a
provision in the rules thar allows full deduction of interest, providing the equity to gross assets ratio of the subsidiary is equal o or
higher than the equity to gross assers ratio of its parent, on 2 consolidated basis, both determined under IFRS.

REAL ESTATE FUND UNITS

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had divested its entire holding of 1,200 Italian real estate fund units for gross proceeds
of €169.2 million, resulting in a realised gain on book cost’, net of associated sale costs, of €16.3 million or £0.26 per
ordinary share.

*Book cast is the purchase price of the units, plus additional capital expenditure, less any returned capisal.



dept Investment

PORTFOLIO

Arx 31 December 2007, Eurocastle owned a €2.1 billion debt investmenr portfolic comprised of 201 securities and loans. Follewing
the year end, the Group climinated all of the mark-to-market exposure on the financing of its debr investment portfolio and
eliminated any recourse debt, with the exception of €30 million limited recourse on one facility. The portfolio is diversified by,
among other things, asset type, geography and rting.

DEBT INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

QOverview of the Debt Investment Portfolio
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Carrying value of roral debe investments (excluding restricted cash) {(€'000) 2,052,913 1,967,969
Implied discount margin (above Euribor) at carrying value 3.35% 1.78%
Amortised cost af total debt investments (excluding restriceed cash) (€*000) 2,182,133 1,966,087
Weighted average asset margin {above Euribar) 1.79% 1.88%*
Weighted average liability spread* 0.57% 0.56%
Weighted average net spread” 1.22% 1.32%
Weighted average credir rating BBB- BBB-
Perceniage investment grade of debt investment portfolio 65% 66%
Number of securities and loans 201 158

*Ineludes asscis and liabilities referenced uneder o total return svap.

As at 31 December 2007, che change in fair value of the debr investment porifolio was a nec loss of €129.2 million, campared
to a net gain of €1.9 million in 2006. The decline in fair value daring 2007 is primarily due to current market condittons in
the financial markets. Flowever, the eredit quality in the debt portfolio remains strong, with minimal delinquencies in loans
underlying the securities in the commercial morrgage-backed portfolio. There has heen no marerial deterioration or impairment
in the credit quality of our portfolio.

Eurocastle’s €2.1 billion inveserment portfolio (excluding restricied cash) consises primarily of commercial real estate backed and
residenrial real estare backed debr. The following describes the investment portfolio as at 31 December 2007:

Debt Investment Portfolio Compeosition (31 December 2007)

Tatal Debt
Nominal Portfolio
Asset class €000 %
Commercial real estate backed 1,752,942 79.9%
Residential real estate backed 367,291 16.8%
Other 72,600 3.3%

2,192,833  100%

Commercial Real Estate Backed Debt
The Group vwned €1.75 billion face amount of commercial assets (Commercial moregage backed securitics ("CMBST), Mexzanine
Loans, B-Notes, Whole Business Securitisations, NPL Sccuritisarions and Real Estate Loans, SME CLOs and Commercial Leases),
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During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group purchased €766.0 million, sold €57.4 million and had paydowns of
€446.0 million for a net increase of €262.6 million. The Group’s €918 million CMBS porrfolio continues to perform with only
0.24% underlying delinquent loans. In addition the Group has no delinquencies in ics Mezzanine Loans, B-Notes and Real Estare
Loans, The Group had 23 sccurities or €183.7 million CMBS securities upgraded and 3 downgrades rotalling €40.5 million.
Credit spreads widened on average by 159 basis points on the CMBS portfolio and were unchanged on the Mezzanine Loans,
B-Nores and Real Estare Loans portfolias,

Total Debt Average  Average
Nominal Bock Average Credit LTV
Assct class €'000 % Rating®  Spread” %
CMBS 917,957 41.8% BBB+ 304 64.7%
Commercial real estate loans 573,956 26.2% B 290 81.2%
NPL. securitisation 61,279 2.8% A+ 211 15.8%
SME CLO 118,156 5.4% BRB- 451 N/A
Whole business securitisation 81,594 3.7% BBR 312 58.7%

1,752,942 79.9% BBB- 306

"Average Rasings are calculated by veference sa the fowest rating currendy assigned ta each loan ar security by any of Moody Investor Services. Standard & Poor's, and
Derivasive Fitch and an avithmetic mean weighted by the current face amount of each loan or recurity. The average credit spread represenis the avernge implied discount
margin (above Euribor} at the current careying value, weighted by the ciirrent nominal par ameuns auisianding.

% of Total

Country Exposure/Rating AAA AA A RRR BB B Total Debt

Distriburion €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000 €000 €000 Portfolio
UK 20,435 28,156 85,397 327,359 50,261 214,815 726,423 33.4%
Germany 19,207 19,724 22,690 135,979 41,959 175,651 4§5,210 18.9%
ltaiy 18,961 5.384 21,434 73,218 28,957 47,600 195,554 8.9%
France — — 2,228 23,650 — 77,409 103,287 4.7%
Netherlands —_ — — 19,886 14,691 — 34,577 1.7%
Switzerland — — 3,000 — 17,367 23,670 46,037 2.1%
Spain — — 12,200 5,465 9,600 — 27,265 1.2%
Other” 24,993 24,991 29,991 104,313 20,301 — 204,589 9.3%
Total 83,596 78,255 178,940 689,870 183,136 539,145 1,752,942 79.9%

% of total debt
portfolic 3.8% 3.6% 8.2% 31.4% 8.4% 24.5% 79.9%

*Other represents underlying exposures to counrries locased within the European Unien and Channel lilands.

Residential Real Estate Debt

The Group owned €367.3 millian face amount of residential mortgage backed securities ("RMBS”). During the year, the Group
purchased €109.8 million, sold €23.7 million and had paydowns of €45.8 million for a net increase of €38.3 million. The average
rating of the RMBS portfolic was unchanged at BBB. The Group had 21 seeurities or €100.3 million RMBS securities upgraded
and | downgrade toralling €6.4 million. Credit spreads widened on average by 335 basis points across our whole RMBS porfalio,
of which 413 basis points was solely on the UK non-conforming RMBS portfotio.

The composition of the residential mortgage backed securicies portfolio as at 31 December 2007 is shown below:

Total Debx Average

Nominal Book Average  Credit

RMRBS type €000 Y% Rating”  Spread”
Prime 174,900 8.1% BBB 379
Mixed 71,314 3.2% BBB- 574
Non conforming 121,078 5.5% BBB+ 531

367,292 16.8% BBB 459

"Average Ratings are calcubited by reference 1o the lowest rating curreutly assigned to each loan or security by any of Moody Invesior Services, Standard & Poor's, and
Derivative Fisch and un arithmetic mean weighted by the current face amount of each loan or seeurity. The nverage credit spread represents the waverage implied discount
margin (above Euribor) at the current carrying valur, weighted by the current nominal par amount outstanding,



% of Total

A BBD BB Total Deht

Rating Distribution/Country Exposure €'000 €000 €000 €000 Portfolio
United Kingdom 37.146 184,650 14,352 236,148 10.8%
lealy — 36,750 — 36,750 1.7%
Netherlands 6,375 12,110 15,000 33,485 1.5%
Germany 3.889 5,000 6,200 15,089 0.7%
Spain —_ 10,692 2,200 12,892 0.6%
Belgium —_ 5,000 — 5,000 0.2%
Ireland —_ 24,128 2,800 26,928 1.2%
Gireece — 1,000 — 1,000 0.1%
Total 47,410 279,330 40,552 367,292 16.8%
% of total debt portfolio 2.2% 12.7% 1.9% 16.8%

UK Non-Conforming RMBS
Wirhin the larger residential mortgage backed securities portfolio the current average rating of the €109.0 million UK non-
conforming loan backed securiries sub-portfolio is BBB+. The performance of these assets has been in-line with the Group's
cxpectations and there has been no marterial dererioration in the credit fundamentals since the beginning of 2007, It is a well
seasoned portfolio (backed by residential moregages with a weighted average seasoning of 3.02 vears). The benefits of the scasoning
effect are threefold; firscly, there is a scrong payment history from the underlying borrowers, secondly, the deals have benefited
from strong UK house price appreciation, and chirdly, the portfolio has avoided some of the weaker underwriting and structuring
practices prevalent in the 2006/7 vintage. The following table illustrates the exposure by vintage of mortgage loan originarion in
the UK non-conforming loan backed securities sub-portfulio as of 31 December 2007,

Total Debt  Average  Average

Nominal Baok Rating'*  Credit
Year of mortgage origination” €000 % % Spread®”
2004 26,185 1.2% BRB 463
20415 69,962 3.2% BBB+ 486
2006 12,881 0.6% BBB 810
Total 109,028 5.0% 8BB+ 519

“Year of mortgage nrigination refers so the weighted average date of oviginatian of the underlying residemtial morigage loans rather than eisher the jssue date, or the purchase
date. of the securitized debt secnrities held by the Group.

“Average ratings are calenlated by vefrrence to the lowest rating cnrrently assigned 1o each loan or securiry by any of Moody Investor Services, Standard o Poor’s, and
Devipative Fitch and an avithmetic mean weighted by the current fuace amount of exch loan or security. The average credit spread represents the average implied discount
rurgin (above Euriber) at the current carrying value, weighted by the enrrent nominal par amonnt outstanding.

Other Debt

As ar 3t December 2007, che Group owned €72.6 million face amount of other structured finance debt (commercial and
consiemer loans). During the year, the Group purchased €13.3 million, and had sales of €24.6 million for a net decrease of
€11.3 million. The Group had no upgrades and 1 downgrade rotalling €5.0 million. Credit spreads widened, on average, by 268

basis poinrs on the other structured finance debt portfolio.
Total Debt  Average  Average

Nominal Baok Rating* Credi
[3ebt Type €000 % % Spread”
Commercial leases & loans 25,950 1.2% A- 385
Consumer leases & loans 46,650 2.1% BRB+ 426
Total 72,600 3% A- 412

Average Ratings are calculared by reference to the lowest vating currensly assigned o each loan ar security by any of Moody Investor Services, Stundurd & Poar’s, and
Derivative Fiteh and an arithmetic mean weighted by the current face amount of each loan or seenrity. The average credit spread represents the average implied discorint
margin (abave Euribor) at the currens carrying value, weighted by the current naminal par amouns outstanding.
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% of Total

AAA AA A RRB BB Total Debe
Rating distribuion/country exposure €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000 €000 Pariolio
ltaly 10,000 4500 19,400 5000 7700 46,600  2.0%
Germany — — — 3,250 — 3,250 0.2%
Sweden — — _ 3,500 — 3,500 0.2%
United Kingdom — — — 10,000 -— 10,000 0.5%
Portugal — — — 2,250 7,000 9,250 0.4%
Total 10,000 4,500 19,400 24,000 14,700 72,600  3.3%

Credit Quality

The credit quality of the debt investment portfolio has remained strong over the last {2 months, Positive credit migration has
outweighed negative mavements in every quarter since the inception of the portfolio. The current lifecime rating upgrades versus
downgrades ratio is 127:13; for the year ended 31 December 2007 the ratio was 44:3 and for the last quarcer 2007 was 19:3. While
over time the weighred average credir rating of the debr investmenc portfolio has declined slightly, primarily as a consequence of
the strategic repositioning by the Group away from bond investments and rowards loan investments, whereas the rating profile of
the asset backed sccurities porcfolio has remained stable. The graph below shows ratings action experienced in the portfolio on a
quarterly basis.

DEBT INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO RATING UPGRADES/DOWNGRADES BY QUARTER

25

B Upgrade
[ | Downgrade

20

15

Rating Actions by Number
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Quarter End

Capital Markets Activity

During the last quarter of the financial year, the Group fully repaid all its repurchase agreements and unwound its toral retarn
swap financings. Subsequent to the year end, the Group has eliminated all its mark-tu-market and any full recourse exposure on
its debt investment portfolio, and all debt investment portfolio financing facilities with marurities during 2008 were successfully
extended to hetween Seprember and December 2009 with the remaining full recourse facility replaced by a recourse facility
limited o €30 million.

Following these transactions approximately 83.4% of cthe portfolio benefits from financing maturing beyond the maturity date of
our assets.




Asset/Liability Structure for Debt Investment Portfolio

Cash in Liabilitics

31 December 2007 Assets Hand Drawn Facility ~ Average
Nominal  Average Average Nominal  Amoum Amount Life Legal M-T-M

Funding structure €000 Life  Rating €000 €000 €000 €000  Maturity Provisions
Eurocastle CDO Il PLC 409,355 4.3 BBB 2,957 372,431 372,431 7.5 Dec 2060 No
Eurocastle CDO 11 PLC 730,023 4.4 BBB 2,374 704250 704,250 7.5 Dec 2060 No
Eurocastle CDO 1V PLLC 158,008 4.7 BRB+ — 165,230 400,000 0.7 Aug 2008 No
Duncannon CRE CDO 1 PLC 758,228 4.5 BB 1,509 681,356 698,667 64 Jun 2047 No
Eurncastle Funding Limited
{unlevered} 63,145 2.9 BB — — e — —
Eurocastle Funding Limired
{financed)* 74,074 3.5 B — 59,260 59,260 0.3 Apr2008 Yes
Total 2,192,833 4.4 BBB- 6,840 1,982,527 2,234,608 6.3 _ _
*The legal marurity of Eurocastle Funding Limited's liabilitics is based on the weighted average maturity of all its liabifitics,

Cashin Liabilities
29 February 2008 (Pro Forma) Astcts Hand Drawn Facifity  Average

Nominal  Average Average Nominal  Amount Amount Life Legal M-T-M

Funding structure G000 Life Rating €000 €'000 €000 €000  Maiurity Provisions
Eurocastle CDDO 11 PLC 404,079 4.1 BBB 6,835 372,431 372,431 7.3 Dec 2060 No
Eurocastle CDO 1 PLC 725,164 4.5 BBB 8,949 704,250 704,250 7.3 Dec 2060 No
Lurocastle CDO 1V PLC 174,417 4.3 A- — 127,671 127.671 1.8 Dec 2009 No
Duncannon CRE CDO I PLC 760,596 4.5 BB 11,105 694,567 698,667 6.2 Jun 2047 No
Eurocastle Funding Limited
(unlevered) 30,736 2.8 B- — —_ PR — — —
Eurocastle Funding Limired
(financed)* 128,890 4.0 BB+ — 106,998 106,998 1.6 Sep 2009 No
Total 2,223,882 43 BBB- 26,889 2,005917 2,010,017 6.3 — —_

“The legal maturity of Eurocassle Funding Limited's liabilities is based on the weighted average maturity of afl ite liabilities,

Short-Term Financing for the Group

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had total borrowings of €770 mitlion scheduled to mature within one year of the balance

sheet, as shown below:

€000 Maturity

Loan financing the debr investment portfolio (CDO 1V} 165,182 Aug 2008

Other loan financing the debt invesement portfolio 59,260  Aug 2008

Loan financing the commercial property portfalio (Mars) 402,653  Jul 2008

Revolving credir facility 143,049  Ocr 2008
770,144

Since the year end, loans drawn under faciliries financing the debt investment portfolio for €59.3 million and €165.2 million have

been extended e mature on 30 Seprember 2009 and | December 2009, respectively. As described on page 10, the net proceeds

from the sale of a property from the non-core portfolio subsequent to the year end have been used to pay down the loan financing

part of the Mars portfolio to approximately €346 million. The Group is in advanced discussions ta refinance this loan prior 10 its

marurity in July 2008, as well as negotiating an extension to the revolving credit facility which matures in Gcrober 2008,
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Income Statement Data

(in C'000, excepr per share daca)

Year Ended
31 December 2007

Year Ended
31 Becember 2006

Interest income

Rental income

Service ch'.u'gc income

Real estate fund unit interest income
Increasc in fair value of investment properties
[ncreasef{decrease) in fair value of real estate fund units
Interest expense

Other operating expenses

Service charge expense

Ner profit before taxation

Net profit after taxation

Earnings per weighted average basic share
Earnings per weighted average diluted share

Balance Sheet Data

{in C'000, cxcept per share data)

144,697
303,744
60,878
17,185
35,004
6,751
(281,414}
(67,890)
(60,578)
155,787
134,915
2,12
2.06

As at
31 December 2007

95,970
152,454
31,903
18,636
78119
(3,054)
(150,282)
{26,023)
{31,903)
147,557
143,819
3.20
3.08

As at
31 December 2006

Cash and cash equivalents

Asset backed securitics (includes cash 1o be invested)

Assct backed securitics, pledged under repurchase agreements
Real estate foans

Real estate fund units

[nvestment property

Total assets

Drebt obligations

Sharcholders’ equity

Net asset value per ordinary share

146,707
1,488,837
570,916
5,171,086
7,508,195
5,859,058
1,473,688
23.05

Year Ended
31 December 2007

122,699
1,481,661
78,646
428,370
148,077
3,308,872
5.662,380
3,966,328
1,570,719
24.73

Year Ended
31 December 2006

Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

Ordinary shares omstanding

63,787,016
65,569,559
63,927,634

44,956,083
46,760,626
(3,519,083
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (conrinued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Funds from Qperations (FFO)

One of the Group's key performance measures is FFQ, FFO is an appropriate measurc of the underlying operating performance of
companics primarily involved in real estate, because it provides investors with infarmation regarding the Group's ability w service
debr and make capical expendirures.

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

(in C'004, excepr per share dawa) €000 €000
Reconciliation of FFO to net profit after taxation
Net proﬁt after taxation 134,915 143,319
(Increasc} in fair value of investment properties {35,004) (78,119)
(Increasc)fdeercasc in fair valuc of interest rate swaps (13,262) 425
Unrealised movements on currency swaps (nct of translation (gains)/losses on related asscts)” 507 —_
(Increase)fdecrease in fair value of real estate fund units {16,751) 3,054
Realised gain on sale of real estate fund units 19,632 2,163
Realised gain on sale of investment propertics 76,868 —
Deferred tax charge on investment properties 19,381 3,366
Bunds from eperations (FFO) 186,286 74,708
% Increase on prior year 149.4% 136.5%
FFO per weighted average basic share 292 1,66
FFO per weighied average diluted share 2.84 1.60

*During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recogmised firir mtlue gaing on currency stodps thar it had entered into to bedge cermin debt investments denominated
in Pounds Sterling and Swiss Franes (see Notes 9 and 14 of the consolidated financial statemenes for further details). In the table above, the fair valuc gains of the currency
suaps have been nersed against the iranslation losses an the related assets, and the resulting unrealised ner loss of €507k has been excluded from FFO.

FFQ is used to compute incentive compensation t the Manager. FFO, as defined by Eurocastle, represents ner profir after taxa-
tion {(compured in accordance wich IFRS), excluding changes in the fair value of investment properties net of attributable deferred
taxation, changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps that are raken 1o the income statement, unrealised movements on currency
swaps (net of translation gains/losses of related assets)™™ and mark-to-market fluctuations in real estare fund unirs. The Group
considers the realisation of gains and lasses on its investments to be a normal part of its recurring operations and therefore does not
exclude such gains and losses when arriving at FFQ. FFO does not represent cash generared from operating activities in accordance
with IFRS and cherefore should not be considered an alternative to cash flow as a measure of liquidity, and is not necessarily
indicative of cash available to fund cash needs. Eurocastle’s calculation of FFO may be different from the calculation used by other
companies and, therefore, comparabiliry may be limited.

“*Currency swaps and related iterns have been added ta the list of FFO exclusions ar these sransactions were ensered into for the firss time in 2007 (ser note above).

In che year ended 31 December 2007, FFQ increased by 149.4% ro €186.3 million. The main components of this increase were
increases in rental income, interest income and realised gains on the sale of assets. The increase in FFO was due to accretive
growth, organic growth and gains on sale of assets. Aceretive growth occurs by acquiring additional investments generating
income above the expected cost of capital, whereas organic growth mainly comes from leasing up vacant space within the portfolio

and controlling costs.

Dividends

The Group declared 10tal dividends of €1.95 per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007, including a dividend of
€0.30 per share declared on 27 March 2008, This represented an increase of 25.0% compared to the aggregarted dividend per share
of €156 per share for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Operating Profit Before Taxation
The table below illustrates the year on year growth of the Group’s operating profit since 31 Decermber 2006:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 3 1december 2006
€000 c'ono
Operating profit before tuxation 155,787 147,557
% Increasc on previous year 5.6% 252.0%




Operating profit before taxation increased from €147.6 million to €155.8 million and includes realised net gains/losses on the sate
of available-for-sale securirics, as well as the fair value movements shown below:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 000
Increase in fair value of investment propertics 35,004 78.119
Increasef{decrease) in fair value of real estate fund units 16,751 (3.054)
Inercasel{decrease) in fair value of incerest rate swaps 13,262 425
(Decrease) in fair value of total return swaps - (150)
Total 65,017 74,490

Operating profir before taxartion, excluding fair value movements described above, increased from €73.1 million in 2006 wo €90.8
million in 2007, representing an increxse of 24.2%.

Cperating Income
The Group’s operating income consists of rental and service charge income from German commercial property, inrerest income
from debt investments, income from rexl estate fund units, gains/losses on sale of available-for-sale assets and fair value movements

on investment prapertics, real estate fund units, interest rare swaps and total return swaps.

Operating income, excluding fair value movements is shown in the table below:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 000

Interest income 144,697 95,970
Rental income 303,744 152,454
Service charge income 60,878 31,903
Real estare fund unit income 17,185 18,636
(Loss)gain on disposal of asset bucked securizies, available-for-sale (1.084) 314
Totat 525,420 299,277

In the year ended 31 December 2007, operating income excluding fzir value gains increased 75.6% to €525.4 million as compared
to €299.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2006.

The increase in interest income during the year, was due mainly to an increase in the debr investment portfolio {asser backed
securities and real estare related loans), and an increase in Euro and Sterling interest rares.

Rental income benefited from rhe acquisition of the Mars portfolio during the first quarter. The Group’s sales of commercial
property assets resulted in an overall gain of €55.0 million (€0.86 FFO per share) ner of all transaction costs and incentive fees.
The Group was able ro partly compensare for che loss of rental income on asset sales by acquiring additional rerail properties
during the third and fourth quarters.

Real estate fund unit income decreased from €18.6 million to €17.2 million due 1o the sale of the real estate fund units in
October 2007.

The Group’s operating income, excluding fair value gains, has grown substantially vear on year since it commenced operations
which has in turn driven growth in operating profit before raxation and cash available for distribution. These increases were
achieved through a combination of aceretive growth and organic growth,

The Group expects to continue to grow through active asset management of the real estate portfolio. [n che longer term, however,
the performance of investments will depend upon market conditions, the competitive environment in which the Group operates,
and the ability of the Group to identify and acquire appropriate investments.

The Group’s commercial real estate in Germany benefits from leases indexed to the German consumer price index ("CPI7), as it is
a common practice in the German real estate marker. Substantially all of the ieases in the Retail Pordfolio are indexed to the
German CI'l with a rental adjustment being made once the index has moved 10% from a reference poine level set on signing of
cach lease. The size of the adjustment is generally between 50% and 70% of the index movement depending on the tenant and
form of the lease. The leases 1o Deursche Bank within the Wave Portfolio, which account for 73% of che portfolio’s revenue, are
also indexed o German CPI. A movement of 5% in the index will result in a rent adjusement of 100% of such index movement.
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F]NANC]AL REVIEW (continued)

The leases to Dresdner Bank within the Drive Porifolio have a fixed upwards renr adjustment of 1% in each year from 2008 o
2009 and chereafter from 2010, the rens adjustment is equal to the change in German CP determined on an annual basis. Ocher
leases, including the Bridge 2nd Mars porcfolios, are also indexed to the German CPI.

Operating Expenses
The Group'’s operating expenses have increased since ik commenced operations, again reflecting the underlying growrh in the size
of its portfolio, and are detiled in the table below:

Yeor Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€'000 C'000
Incerest expense 281,414 150,282
Losses un foreign currency contracts, translation and swaps 1,995 1,211
Service charge expenses 60,878 31,903
Property operating expenscs 22,473 16,791
Other operating expenses 67,890 26,023
Total operating expenses 434,650 226,210
Operating income (excluding fair value movements) 525,420 299,277
Cost: Income ratio {excluding fair value movements) 82.7% 75.6%
Cost: Income ratio {excluding fair value movements, service charge income and
expense, sale related costs and incentive fees) 66.9% 71.7%

A significant proportion of the Group’s operating expenses represent interest expense (64.7% for the year ended 31 December
2007, against 66,.4% as at 31 December 2006). Interest expense of the Group in the year ended 31 December 2007 amounted o
€281.4 million compared to €150.3 million for the same periad in 2006, an increase of 87.3%. The increase was primarily due ro
additional debt raken on to finance the commercial properey acquisitions and debt invescmencs completed during the year, as well

as from increases in marker intercst races.

Service charge expenses accounted for 14.0% of the Group’s operating expenses (2006: 14.1%) and amounted 1o €60.9 million
for 2007, compared to €31.9 million for 2006. The increase was mainly due ro the growth in the commercial prapercy portfolio
during che year.

Corporation Tax
For the year ended 31 December 2007, corporation taxes totalled €20.9 million (2006: €3.7 million), comprising €19.4 million of
deferred taxes and €1.5 million of current taxes.

The deferred tax includes temporary differences between the fair value and the German tax book value of all investment
properties, except those within the Drive portfolio (which are exempt from corperation tax on all income generated and
revaluation gains).

The Group has structured its investments in a tax cfficient manner but changes in tax legislation in relevant jurisdietions

(including Guernsey, Luxembourg, Treland and Germany) could affect the Group's effecrive rate of raxarion.
The average effective current tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2007 was 1.0%% (2006: 0.3%).
The average effective toral tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2007 was 13.4% (2006: 2.5%).

Cash Flow from Operations
The following sunimarizes the Group’s cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decembear 2007 31 [December 2004
€000 C'000
Net cash inflow from aperating activities 132,91 118.650
Net cash outflow from investing activities {1,950,640) (3,156,569)
Ne1 cash inflow from finuncing activities 1,841,717 3,146,978
Net increase in cash and short-term deposits 24,008 109,059

The cash outflow from investing activitics reflects the acquisition of additional German commercial real estate portfolios and
net purchases of debe invesrments. The cash flow generated from financing activities reflects the increased bank borrowings and

20




additional issuance of debt to finance the expansion of the Group'’s commercial property portfolio and debt investment portfolio.
The Group's cash position ar 31 December 2007 resulted in a positive balance of €146.7 million (2006: €122.7 million).

Total Assets

Total assets as at 31 December 2007 amounted to €7.5 billion, representing 1 32.6% increase from €5.7 billion as at 31 December
2006, This primarily reflects the further acquisition of German property investments, debt investments partly off ser by the sale of
non-core real estate assets and real estate fund unirs,

As at 31 December 2006 real estare fund units amounted to €148.1 million and as at 31 December 2007 the Group has disposed

the enrire incerest in real estare fund units.

Real Estate Investments

As at 31 December 2007, the Group's real estate portfolio comprised €5.2 billion of commercial property investments compared
with €3.5 billion as at 31 December 2006. This represents an increase of 49.6% over the twelve month period. This ner increase
represents €2.4 billion of acquisition of real estate portfolio, €0.5 billion of non-core assets sales and €35.0 million of unrealised

gain on revaluation of underlying assets.

Real Estate Fund Units
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had disposed of irs enrire holding of rcal estate fund units. [n Ocrober 2007, 1,200 real estare
fund unics were sold and chis resulied in a gain of €16.3 million, ner of all transaction costs and incentive fees.

Debt investments
As at 31 December 2007, the Group carried debt investments valued ac €2.1 billion compared to €1.9 billion as at 31 December
2006. Of this, €1.5 billion represented asset backed securities as ac 31 December 2007 (2006: €1.5 billion).

Asset backed securities are stated at marcker value. As at 31 December 2007, che fair value movement was a net loss of
€129.2 million, compared to a ner gain of €1.9 million in 2006, The decline in fair value during 2007 is primarily due o
cutrent market conditions in the financial market; however none of the asset backed securiries were considered impaired as ac
31 December 2007,

As at 31 December 2007, €571.0 million represented real estate related loans (an increase of 33.3%% on the amount held as ac
31 December 2000), rhis includes real estate related B notes and Mezzanine loans (2006: €428.4 million).

CDO Bonds Payable and Repurchase Agreements

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had an issue of €1.7 billion of CI2O bonds payable (comprising bonds issued by Eurocastle
CDO (I, 11T and Duncannon) representing an increase of 44.0% on che amount of CIDO bonds payable in issuc ar 31 December
2006 (€1.2 billion). This was a result of Lurocastle CDO I issuing further nates to finance the purchase of additional asser
backed securities and the clasing of Duncannon CRE CDO [, a collateralised debe obligation, te finance an €800 million port-
folio of mezzanine loans, bank loans, B-Notes, CMBS, and other commercial real estate backed asses.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no repurchase agreements, a decrease of 100.0% as compared to 31 December 2006
(€£75.5 million) primarily due to the sale of debt investments previously financed under repurchase agreements.

Bank Borrowings

As ar 31 December 2007, the Group’s bank berrowings had increased to €4.1 billion, compared w €2.7 billion as ac 31 December
2006 reflecting principally the term financing of additional acquisitions of commercial property porifolios and real estate
related loans.

RISKS

Interest Rate Risk
The Group's primary interest rare exposure relates to its real estate and other asser backed sceurities, loans and floating rate debr
obligations, as well as its incerest rate swaps. Changes in the level of interest rates also can affect the Group's ability to acquire

securities and loans and irs ability to realise gains from the disposal of such assets.

The Group secks to manage its interest rare exposure and consequently expects ro suffer minimal changes in net profic as a result
of changes in interest rates. The Group generally finances its core real escate porifolias with fixed rate loans for original terms
ranging from 7 to 13 years, or where it takes out Floaring rate term loans, ir enters into hedging inscruments (such as incerest rate
swaps), to lock in 2 fixed race for the duration of rhe loan.
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s primary forcign currency exchange rate exposure relates to its non-curo denominated portfolio of securities and
loans, Changes in rhe currency exchange rates can adversely impact che fair values and earnings streams of the Group's non-curo
denominated assets and liabilities. The Group has mitigated this impace through a combinarion of (i} non-curo denominared
financing; and (ii) rolling forward foreign exchange contacts to hedge its net non-euro equity investment.

In connection with the Group's purchase of its available-for-sale real estate and other asset backed securities and real estare related
loans, the foreign currency risk is covered through forward foreign currency exchange contracts and foreign currency swaps.

Market Risk
The Group’s exposure to market risk is comprised mainly of movements in the value of its investments.

The Group’s real estate investment assets are based in Germany and are subject to general property market risks. These risks are
assessed by the Group ar the point of acquisition and are then monitored on an ongoing basis. Exrernal valuations by suitably
qualified independent vatuers of the Group’s real estare assets are obrained during each financial year.

The Group’s debr securities are predominantly floating rate, and as such are valued based on 2 market credit spread over Euribor,
Libor and CHF benchmarks for curo and non-eure denominared assets respectively. Increases in the credic spreads above such
benchmarks may affect the Group’s net equity, net income or cash flow directly through their impact on unreatised gains or losses
on available-for-sale securitics, and therefore its ability 1o realise gains on such securities, or indirectly through their impact on its

ability to barrow and access capiral.

Credit Risk

The Group is subject to credit risk with respecy o irs invesrmens in real esrare, and other asset backed securities and loans.

The securicies the Group invests in are generally junior in right of payment of interest and principal to one or more senior classes,
buc benefit from the support of one or more subordinate classes of securiries or other farm of credir support wichin a securitisarion
cransaction. While the expected yield on these securities is sensitive to the performance of the underlying assets, the more
subordinated securities are designed to bear the first risk of default and loss.

The Group minimises credir risk by actively monitoring its securities portfolio and the underlying credir quality of its holdings and
where appropriate, repositioning its investments o upgrade the credit qualicy and yield on the invesrments.

The Group's sccurities portfolio is diversified by asser type, industry, location and issuer. At 31 December 2007, the Group's
securities, which serve as collateral for its CIDO financings and other borrowings, had an averall weighred average credit rating of
approximasely BBB-.

Liguidity and Capital Resources
The Group's ability to exccure its business strategy, particularly the growth of its investment portfolio, depends to a significant
degree on the Group’s ability to obtain additional capital.

The Group's primary sources of funds for liquidity consist of net cash provided by operating activities, borrowings under loans and
credit facilities, and the issuance of debr and equity securities. The Group’s loans and debt securities are generally secured directly
over its assets. The Group expects that its cash on hand and cash flow provided by operations will satisfy its liquidity needs with
respect fo its current investment portfolio in che forseeable future. The Group expects to meer its long-term liquidity requirements,
specifically the sepayment of its debr obligations, through additional borrowings and the liquidation, refinancing or repayment of
its assers ar maruriry,

A significant portion of the Group's investments are financed with collateralised debr obligations, known as CDOs. The Group
finances some of its debr investments with short-term bank faciliries.




REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Incorporation
Eurocastle Investment Limited (the “Group”) was incorporated in Guernsey, Channel Islands on 8 August 2003 and commenced
its operacions on 21 Ocrober 2003.

Activities

The principal activitics of the Group include investing in, financing and management of high quality German commercial proper-
ties. In addition, the Group also invests in European real estate related debt which is complementary 1o its core business. The
Group is externally managed by its manager (the "Manager™), an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC, a global alcernative
asset manager with approximately US$33.2 billion of assets under management as of 31 December 2007. The Group has entered
into a management agreement (the “Management Agreement”) under which the Manager advises the Group on various aspects of
its business and manages its day-to-day operations, subject to the supervision of the Group’s Board of Directors. The Group has no
direct employees. For its services, the Manager receives an annual managemem fee (which includes a reimbursement for expenses)
and incentive compensation, as defined in the Management Agreement. The Group has no ownership interest in the Manager.

Review of Business
The consolidated income statement for the year is set out on page 27. A review of the developmenr and performance of the business
has been set our in the lecter w shareholders, business review and financial review. This includes an analysis of the performance

and position of the business. Principal risks facing the business have been sec out in the financial review.

Dividends

On 28 March 2008, che Board of Directors declared a fourth quarter dividend of €0.30 (2006: €0.43). The Board has determined
that reraining a porrion of its earnings is in the best long-term interests of the Company and its sharcholders. The Board has also
determined thar going forward, che Company will pay any dividends declared on a semi-annual basis. The aggregate dividend for
the year was €1.95 compared 10 €1.56 in 2006,

Management Agreement

The Independent Directors have reviewed the continued appointment of the Manager. In carrying out the review, the [ndependent
Directors considered the past performance of the Group and the capability and resources of the Manager 1o deliver satisfacrory
investment performance. The Independent Directors also considered the length of notice peried of the Management Agreement
and the management and incentive fees payable to the Manager, together with the standaed of the other services provided.

The Independent Directors conclude that the continued appointment of the Manager was in the best interest of the shareholders.

Dirgctors
The Directors who held office during the year and subsequently were:

Wesley R. Edens
Randal A, Nardone
Keith Dorrian
Paclo Bassi

Simon Thornton
Udo Scheffel

Directors’ Interests
The interests of the Directars in the ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 December 2007 were as follows:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Paolo Bassi 37,800 36,800
Keith Dorrian 4,000 3,000
Wesley R. Edens* 50,000 50,000
Randal A. Nardone* 20,000 20,000
Udo Scheffel 1,000 —_
Simon Thornion 1,000 —

"Wesley R. Edens and Randal A, Nardone are members of Fortress Operating Entity H LP which is the registered holder of 1,005,000 Share: and as a result of this relation-
ship Wesley R, Edens and Randal A. Nardone are interested i the shares auned by 1his entity or in some af such shares,
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REPORT OF D[RECTORS (continued)

Substantial Shareholdings
As at 28 April 2008, the Group had norification thac the following shareholders had an interest in 3% or more of Eurocastle
Investment Limited’s share capital:

% Holdings
Nederlands Centraal Instituut Voor Giraal Effectenverkeer BV* 66.30%
Goldman Sachs Securities {Naminees) Limited 13.76%
Euroclear Nominces Limited 5.60%
Fortress Investment Fund 1T LP, 4.74%
Fortress Investment Fund I (Fund B) L.P, 4.06%

“Nederlands Centragl Institunt Vaor Giraal Kffectenverbeer BV is the Dutch central securities depositary (otherwise knoun as Envoclear Netherlands).

Auditors
Ernsc & Young LLP were re-appointed during the peried. Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to continue
in office.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM of Eurocastle [nvestment Limited will be held on 4 june 2008 in Guernsey at the registered office.

Registered Office

International Administration (Guernsey) Limited
Regency Court

Glaregny Esplanade

St Peter Porr, Guernsey, GYT 1WW

On behalf of the Board

B2

Wesley R. Edens
Date: 30 April 2008
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report 2nd the financial statements in accordance with Companies
{Guernsey) Law 1994 and International Financial Reporting Standards.

The Directors are required o prepare financial statements for each financial year which present fairly the financial position of
the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the group for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the
Direcrors are required to:

= Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentdy;

* Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides refevant, reliable comparable and understandable
informarion;

* Provide addirional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in [FRSs is insufficient to enable users 1o
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the emiity’s financial positien and financial

performance; and
= Stare thae the company has complied with IFRSs, subject to any marerial departures disclosed and explained in the financial

stiatements.

The Directars are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any rime the
financial position of the Group and to enable them to ensure that che financial statements comply with the Companies (Guernsey)

Law 1994.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention

and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To the members of Eurocastle Investment Limited

We have audired the consolidared financial sratements of Eurocasde Invesrment Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2007 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statemenr, Conselidated Balunce Sheet, Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqguity, and che related notes 1 to 33. These financial starements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely o the company’s members, as a body, in accordance wirth Secrion 64 of the Companies {(Guernsey) Law
1994, Our audir work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required ro state
them in an auditer’s report and for no other purpase. to the fullest extent permirted by the law, we do not accepr or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this reporr, or for

the opiniens we formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The ditectors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance with applicable
Guernsey law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are set our in the Sratement of Directors” Responsibilities in

respect of the financial statements,

Our responsibility is ro audit the financial stacements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
Fnternational Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and wherher the financial sratements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Guernsey) Law 1994, We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if che company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have

received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if the information specified by law or the listing rales.

We read other information contained in the Annual Repore and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial seare-
menes. The other information comprises only the Director’s Report and Chairman's Statement. We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our

responsibilities do nor extend to any ether information.

Basis of Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Tnternational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by che Audicing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-
ments. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial stacements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obeain all the informacion and explanations which we considered necessary in order
w provide us with sufficient evidence o give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstate-
ment, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the

presentation of information in the financial starcments.
QOpinion
[n our apinion the financial scacements give a true and fair view, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,

of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2007 and of its profic for the year then ended; and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Guernsey) Law 1994,

Bur & tang w4

Ernst & Young LLP
Registered audicor
Londan

Darte: 30 April 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Notes €000 €000
Operating income
Inrerest income 3 144,697 95,970
Rental income 4 303,744 152,454
Service charge income 5 60,878 31,903
Real estate fund unir interest income 17,185 18,636
(Loss)/gain on disposal of asset backed securities, available-for-sale {1,084) 314
Increase in fair value of investment properties 8,16 35,004 78,119
Increase/(decrease) in fair vilue of real estare fund unirs 15 16,751 (3,054)
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of interest rate swaps 13,262 (425)
Decreasc in fair value of roral rerurn swaps —_ (150}
Total operating income 590,437 373.767
Operating expenses
Interest expense 6 281,414 150,282
Losses on foreign currency contracts, translation and swaps 9 1,995 1,211
Service charge expenses 5 60,878 31,903
Property operating expenses 4 22,473 16,791
Other operating expenses 7 67,890 26,023
Total operating expenses 434,650 226,210
Operating profit before taxation 155,787 147,557
Taxation expensc—current 8 1,491 372
Taxation expense—deferred 8 19,381 3.366
Net profit after taxation 134,915 143,819
Earnings per ordinary share
Basic 23 2.12 3.20
Dilured 23 2.06 3.08
Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding
Basic 23 63,787,016 44,956,083
Diluced 23 65,569,559 46,760,626

See notes to the consolidared financial sratements,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

3 December 2007 31 December 2006

Notes €000 €000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalenes 10 146,707 122,699
Orther assets 13 81,988 69,537
Asset backed securities, available-for-sale (includes cash o be invested) 11 1,488,837 1,481,661
Asset backed securitics, pledged under repurchase agreements " — 78,646
Real esrare related loans 2 570,916 428,370
Real estare fund units 15 - 148,077
Fixtures and fittings 18 754 —
Derivative assets 14 44,839 22,690
Investment propercy 16 5,171,086 3,308,872
Intangible assets 17 3,068 1,828
Total assets 7,508,195 5,662,380
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Issued capital, no par value, unlimited number of shares authorised 24 1,446,172 1,439,517
Accumulated profic 109,082 88,458
Net unrealised (loss)/gain on asset backed securities, available-for-sale 11 {129,221) 1,882
Hedging reserve 25 30,335 23,542
Other reserves 24 17,320 17,320
Total shareholders’ equity 1,473,688 1,570,719
Minority interest 6 6
Total equity 1,473,604 1,570,725
Liabilities
Trade and ather payables 22 121,846 93,299
CDO bonds payable 19 1,742,746 1,210,275
Bank borrowings 20 4,116,312 2,680,563
Repurchase agreements 21 -_ 75,490
Derivative liabiliries — 212
Finance lease payable 16 26,709 25,800
Current taxation payable 8 2,030 539
Deferred axation liability 8 24,858 5.477
Toial liabilities 6,034,501 4,091,655
Total equity and liabilities 7,508,195 5,662,380

See notes to the consolidated financial statenents,

The accounts were approved by the Board of directors on 30 April 2008 and signed on its behalf by:

e
A2 jm-\!lﬁcfji:_

Wesley R, Edens Simon J. Thornton
Chairman Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 €000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit before raxation 155,787 147,557
Adjusunents for:
Interest income (144,697) (95,970}
Interest expense 281,414 150,282
Unrealised loss on foreign currency contracts 1,995 1,211
Amartisation of {discounts)/premiums on securities (1,018} 434
Amortisation of borrowing costs 12,188 3,458
Realised loss/(gain) on disposal of asset backed securities, available-for-sale 1,084 (887}
Shares granted to directors a8 172
Amortisation of intangibles 593 144
Depreciation 63
{Increase)/decrease in fair value of real estate fund units {16,751) 3,054
{Increase) in fair value of investment properties (35,004) {78,119
Decrease in fair value of tatal return swap — 150
{Increase)/decrease in fair value of interest rate swap (13,262) 425
Decreasef{increase) in other assers 6,361 (11,835)
Interese received 137,323 98,061
Increase in rrade and other payables 14,032 32,909
Interest paid (267,275} (134,366)
Net cash flows frem aperating acrivities 132,931 118,650
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment properry (2,367,085) (2,744,365)
Proceeds from dispesal of invesiment properties 528,749 —
Minerity interest movement - 4
Proceeds on sale of available-for-sales securirics 365,725 245,049
Purchase of asset backed sccurities, available-for-sale {554,219) (389,829}
Sale of securities pledged under repurchase agreements 78,646 65,398
Purchase of securitics pledged under repurchase agreements — (34,135)
PPurchase of real estare related loans {301,462) (427,635)
Sale of rcal estare related loans 136,417 91,914
Proceeds of disposal of real estare fund units 164,475 38,460
Return of capical of real estate fund units 764 —
"urchase of fixtures and fittings {817) —
Purchase of intangible assers (1,833) {1,430)
Nere cash flows from investing activities (1,950,640) (3,156,569)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of issuance of ordinary shares 6,916 1,195,401
Costs related to issuance of ordinary shares {359) (26,557)
’roeceds from issuance of bonds 923,106 235,458
Costs related to issuance of bonds (9,245} (1,970)
Barrowings under repurchase agreements — 33,215
Repayments under repurchasing agreements {75,490) (61,267}
Repayments of bonds issued {351,000) -
Increase of bank barrowings 1,462,080 1,846,501
Dividends paid to shareholders {114,291) {(73,803)
Net cash flows from financing activities 1,841,717 3,146,978
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 24,008 109,059
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 122,699 13,640
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 146,707 122,699

See notes 1o the comsolidated financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Austhutable to Equity Holders of the Group

Ordinary Share Other  Net Unrealised  Hedging  Accumudated  Minority  Touat
Shares Capial  Reserves  GainsflLosses)  Reserves Profit Interest  Equity
Number [ANe} £000 £000 +000 €000 €000 000
At 1 January 2006 24,209,670 286,801 1,020 4703 (12,000 18.442 2 298,468
Net unrealised loss on available-for-sale securities — — — (2,850) — — - {2,850
Issuance of shares 39,232.267 1,194,690 — - — — - 1.194.690
Costs related to issue of shares —  {206357) — - — — — {26,557)
Share optiens exercised—pune 2006 71146 G — — — — - 7
Issuznce of ordinary shares w Directors 6,000 172 — — - - — 172
Realised Jusses reclassified 10 the income statement* — — — 4 —_ — — 29
Net unrealised gain on hedge instruments - - — — 35051 - - 35051
Amontisation of novated swap - — - — 591 — - 591
Cast selated ro issuc of options on follow on
share issue —  {16300) 16300 —— — — - —
Movement in minority inrerest — — — —_ —_ — 4 4
Net gains not recognised in the
income stalement — — 17320 1.R82 23542 — 6 42,750
Net profit for the year — - — - — 438 - 143,819
Total income and expense for the year — — 16,300 2,821y 35,682 143,819 — 192,940
Dividends paid - - — — — (73803 — {73.803)
At 31 December 2006 63.519,083 1439517 17,320 1,882 13542 88.458 G 1,570,725
At 1 January 2007 63,519,083 1,439,517 17,320 1,882 23,542 88,458 6 1,570,725
Ner unzealised loss on available-for-sale securities - - — {131,240 - - - 1131,340)
Share options exercised 404 551 6,316 — - - - - 6,916
Shares issued to Directors 4,000 98 - — — - - 98
Additional costs telated to December 2006
share issue - {359) -— - - — - {359)
Realised dosses reclassified 10 the income statement® - - —_ 237 — - - 237
Net unsealised pain on hedge instruments - - —_ -_— 5,052 —_ —_ 5,052
Realised gains on hedge instruments reclassified o
the income statement** — - — - 4,350 - - 4,850
Amortisation of novated swaps - - - — {3,109} — - (3,109}
Net gains not recognised in the
income statement -— - — {128,221} 30,335 - - (98,836)
Net prefit for che vear - - - - — 134915 - 134,915
Total income and expense for the year - - — {131,503} 6793 134915 - 10,605
Dividends paid - - - — —  {114.2%1) — {114,291)
At 31 December 2007 63,027,634 1,446,172 17,320 (129,221} 30,335 109,082 6 1,473,694

“Realised losses are reclassified to the gainfloss) en disposal of asset backed securities, avitrlable for-sale in the invome statement.
**Realised gains on gains on hedge instrumenss are reclassified to the interest expense in the income statement.

See notes to the consolidared financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BACKGROQUND

Eurocastle Investment Limited (the "Group™) was incorporaced in Guernsey, Channel Islands on 8 August 2003 and commenced
its operations on 21 October 2003, Eurocastle Investment Limited is a euro denominated Guernsey closed-end investment
company listed on Euronext Amsterdam (formerly listed on the London Stock Exchange) and on 20 June 2007 was admitied 1o
trading on the Amdicher Marke (Official Market} and the Official Market sub-segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. The
activities of the Group include the investing in, financing and managing of European real estate assets and European real estare

relatred debr.

The Group is externally managed by its Manager, FIG LLC (the “Manager”). The Group has entered inte 2 management
agreement (the “Management Agreement”) under which the Manager advises the Group on various aspects of its business and
manages its day-to-day operations, subject to the supervision of the Group's Board of Directors. For its services, the Manager
receives an annual management fee and incentive compensation (as well as reimbursement for expenses, including expenses of
certain employces providing property/asset management and finance services), as described in the Management Agreement. The

Group has no ownership interest in the Manager.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (EFRS). The financial sracements have been prepared under the same accounring principles and methods of computation
as in the financial starements as at 31 December 2006 and for the year then ended. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in curos, the functional currency of the parent company, because che Group conducts its business predominantly

in euros.

Critical Accounting Judigements and Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reperting
period. Although these esrimates are based on cthe Manager’s best knowledge of rthe amount, event or actions, acrual results
ultimately may differ from rhose estimues.

() Impairment of available-for-sale investments and real estate related loans

The Group assesses on a regular basis whether there is any objective evidence of impairment in respect of the available-for-sale
investments and real estate related loan portfolios. In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows. This evidence may include observable significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, defaults or breaches of
contract, the probability of the borrower entering bankruptey or other financial reorganisation, adverse changes in the payment
status of the borrowers in a group or external events that would imply a high probabilicy of defaulc and loss.

(i1} Valuation of available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. The fair value is based on dealer price quortations.

{iii) Valuation of investment praperties

Investment properties are stared at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by external valuers, The
main factors the valuers consider when determining a fair valuation are the following: passing rent, void periods, and relettability
and marketability of properties.

(v} Fair values of derivatives

The fair values of derivatives are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation techniques including madels arc
used to determine fair values, they are validated and periedically reviewed by qualified personnel. All models are calibrated to
ensure that outpurs reflect acrual daca and comparative markes prices. To rhe extent pracrical models use only observable dava,
however, areas such as credit risk (both own and counter party) and volatilities require management to make estimates. Changes
in assumprions about these faciors could affect the reporred fair value of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT‘ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Basis of Consolidation

The conselidated financial statements comprise rhe financial starements of Eurocastle Investmene Limited and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2007, Subsidiarics are consotidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and
cease 10 be consolidated from the date on which control is rransferred from che Group.

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s subsidiaries consisted of a number of substdiaries in Ireland, Luxembourg and Germany.

Eurocastle Funding Limited (*"EFL"), Eurocasdle CDO [ PLC ("C1O 1), Eurocastle CDO 1 PLC ("CDO 117}, Eurocastle CDO
[I1 PLC (“*CDO 1), Eurocastle COO IV I'LC (*CDO IV”), Duncannon CRE CDO [ PLC (Duncannon) and FECO SUB SPV
PLC (Feco} are all limited companies incorperated in Ireland. The ordinary share capital of these vehicles is held by ourside parties
and rthe Group has no voting rights. In accordance with the Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretation 12 Conselidation—
Special Purpose Entities, the Group consolidates EFL, CDO 1, CDO 11, CDO 1, CDO 1V, Duncannen and FECO as ir rerains
control over these entities and retains the residual risks of ownership of these entities.

The Group owns cither directly or indirecely a 100% equity intesest in a number of significant operating subsidiaries in
Luxembourg, Germany and Ireland, as disclosed in Note 31, which are consolidared into these financial statements.

Eurocastle’s investment in real estace fund units were held by Finial Sarl {"FIP"), a Luxembourg limited company, which is 100%
owned by Luxgare Sarl. The Group owns 100% of Luxgate Sarl.

Financial Instruments

Classification

Financial assets and liabilities classified ar fair value through profir or loss include those designated as such in initial recognition,
including rotal return swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracrts thac are nor
designated as cffective hedging inscruments, and financial assers held for trading including real estate fund unics.”

Available-for-sale assets, including restricted cash balances, are financial assets that are not classified as inscruments held at fair
value through rhe income scatrement, loans and advances, or held (o maturity.

Recognition

The Group recognises financial assets thar are classified as held ac fair value chrough che income statcement and available-for-sale
assets on the dare it commits to purchase che assets (trade date). From this dace, any gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the assets are recognised.

A financial liabiliry is recognised on the date the Group becomes party to contractual provisions of the instrument.

Measurement
Financial instruments are measured inicially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly artributable o the acquisition or issue
of financial assets or liabilities that are not measured ar fair value through profit or loss are included in the carrying amount.

Subsequent 1o initial recognition all instruments that are classified as held at fair value through the consolidated income statement

and available-for-sale assets are carried at fair value.

All financial assets other than trading instruments and available-for-sale assets are measured ar amortised cost less impairment
fosses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective interest rare method. Premiums and discounts, including initial transaction
costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate of
the inscrument.

Real Estale Related Loans (Loans and Receivables)

Loans and reccivables are non-derivate financial assets with fixed or dererminable payments rthat are not quoted in an active
market, do nor qualify as rrading assets and have nor been designated as cither fair value through profit and loss or available-
for-sale. Such asscts are carried ar amoriised cost, using the effective interest method if the time value of money is significan.
Gains and losses are recognised in income when the leans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

“The carrying valur of financial assets classified at fair value through the income statement are disclased in Notes 14 and 15.
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interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings (Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost)”

All loans and borrowings, including the Group's repurchase agreements, are initially recognised ar fair value, being the fair value
of consideration received, net of rransaccion costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
berween proceeds net of transaction cests and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the cffective interest merhod.

Interest Income and inlerest Expense

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement as they accrue, raking into account the effecrive yield of the
asset/liability or an applicable floating rare. Interest income and expense includes the ameortisation of any discount or premium or
other differences berween the initial carrying amounr of an interest bearing inserument and its amount at macurity caleulated on
an effective interest rate basis.

Fair Value Measurement Principles
The fair value of a financial inscrument is based on its quoted market price at the balance sheet date without any deduction for
ransaction costs, If 2 quored marker price is not available, the fair value of the instrument is calculated using pricing models or

discounted cash flow cechniques, as applicable.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, expected future cash flows are based on the Manrager's best estimates and the
discount race is a market relared rate ar the balance sheer date for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where pricing

models are used, inputs are based on marker related measures at the balance sheee date,

The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange traded is calculated ar the amount thae the Group would receive or pay to
terminarte the contract at the balance sheet date caking into account current market conditions and the current creditworthiness

of the counrerparries.

Gains and Losses on Subsequent Measurement

Gains and losses arising from a change in che fair value of instruments thar are classified as held at fair value through the income
statement are recognised directly in the incame statement. Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of available-
for-sale securities are recognised directly in equity until the investment is derecognised (sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of)
or impaired, at which time the relared cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is included in the income statement

for rhe period.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets
A financial asset is derccognised when:

* the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired:

* the Group retains the right o receive cash flows from the asser, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without
material delay o a third party under a 'pass through™ arrangement; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and eicher (2) has transterred substandially all che risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b} has neither transferred nor rerained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred rhe control of the asser.

Where the Group has transferred ics right to receive cash flows from an asser and has neither transferred nor retained substantialty
all the risks and rewards of the asser nor transferred control of the asser, the asser is recognised ro the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that rakes the farm of & guarantce over the cransterred asser is
measured ar the lower of the original carrying amount af the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required ro repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash settled optien or similar
provision} on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the amount of the rransferred asset that the
Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written pur option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the

transferred asser and the option ¢xercise price.

“The carrying value of financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost ave disclosed in Notes 19 and 20.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (antinued

Financial Liabilities
A finuncial liabiliry is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiliry is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liahilicy is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are subsrantially modified, such an exchange or modificacion is treated as a derecognition of the
original liabiliry and the recognition of a new liabiliry and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in

the income startement.

Impairment

The Group assesses ar each balance sheer date whether there is objecrive evidence that a financial asser or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, chere is
objective evidence af impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and thar loss event (or events) has an impact on the calculated future cash flows of the financial asser or group of financial
assets that can be reliably measured.

If objective evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumularive loss, measured as the difference
between the acquisition cose and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asser previously recognised in the
income statement, is ramoved from equiry and recognised in che income stacement,

Subsequent increases in rhe fair values of boch debt instruments classified as available-for-sale and financial assets measured at
amortised cost, which can be objecrively related to an event occurring afrer previous impairment losses have been recognised in the
income statement, are recorded in che income statement. Such reversals are chen raken rhrough the income statemenr only ro the

extent previous impairmenr losses have been taken through the income statement.

Hedge Accounting
Hedge accounting is only used where, at the inceprion of the hedge, there is formal designation and documentacion of the hedging
relationship and it meets the Group’s risk management objecrive strategy for undertaking che hedge. Where chere is a hedging

refationship berween a derivative instrument and a related item being hedged, che hedging instrument is measured at fair value.

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the exposure to variability in the cash flows of recognised assets or liabilities, the
effective part of any gain or loss on re-measurement of the hedging instrument is recognised directly in cquity. The ineffective parc
of any gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

The gains or losses thar are recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement in cthe same period in which che hedged
items affecr the ner profic and loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives thar are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asser or liabilicy thar are ateriburable to the hedged risk.

Repurchase Agreements

Securities and real escate loans subject to repurchase agreements are reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assers when
the cransferee has the right by coneract or custom w sell or repledge the collateral, The counterparty liabilities have been classified
as repurchase agrecments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in hand, short-term deposits and rescricred cash with an original maturicy
of three mounchs or less.
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Restricted Cash

Resrricted cash comprises margin account balances held by derivative counterparties as collateral for forward foreign exchange
contracts, cash held by the rrustees of securitisation vehicles as « reserve for future trustee expenses and cash held as part of the
minimum liquidity requirement by property funds. As such, these funds are not available for use by the Group.

Investment Properties

Investment properties comprise land and buildings. [n accordance with [AS 40, property held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation is caregorised as investment property. [nvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including cransacrion costs,
and recognised when the customary conditions precedent under the relevant purchase agreement have been satisfied and the
purchase price is paid to the vendor, The cost of replacing part of an existing investment property is included in the carrying
amount when the cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent to initial recogrition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects marker conditions at the balance sheer dare. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties arc included in the inconie statement in the year in which they arise. Tenant incentives and leasing
commissions are held as other asscts and zre amortised over the life of the lease.

Investmenr properties are derecognised when cither they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expecied from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal

of an investment property are recognised in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Properties thar meer the definition of investment property held under operating leases are accounted for as investment property. In
such cases the operating leases are accounted for as if they were finance leases with an associated lizbility representing the present
value of future minimum lease payments included in finance lease liabilicies on the balance sheet.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or conrains, a finance lease, is based on the subsrance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 2 specific asset or assers and
whether the arrangement conveys a righe o use the asset.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item,
are capitalised ar the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction of the lease liability so as o
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to the income statement
as they arise.

Other leases are classified as operating leases and the expenses arc taken on a straight line basis over the lease term, unless they

relate 1o properties that meer the definition of investment propercy (see above).

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Incentives given 1o enter inrfo lcase agreements are spread evenly over the lease term as 2 reduction of rental expense, even if the

payments are not made on such a basis.

Real Estate Fund Units

Real estate fund units are recorded ar fair value in the consolidated balance sheet, with any change in fair value recognised in the
consolidared income statement, The interest income is recognised in the income statement as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield of the real estate fund units.
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Intangible Assets

Software costs and sofrware development costs are capiralised when they meet certain criteria relating to idendifiabilicy, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise, and the cost can be measured reliably. These software costs
are recognised in the conselidated income statement through amertisation of the capitalised software costs on a straighr line basis
aver their expected uscful life of 5 years.

Fixtures and Fittings
Fixtures and Fittings are stated ac historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attriburable
to the acquisition of the items. Fixrures and fittings are depreciared on a straighe line basis over their expected useful life of

5 years.

Minority Interests
Minority interests represent interests held by outside parties in the Group'’s conselidared subsidiaries.

Revenue
The Group considers revenue to comprise interest income and rental income as its principal business is investing in, financing and

management of European real estare and other asset hacked sccurities and ocher real estate related assets.

Revenue is recognised to che extent chae it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow ro the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

Service Charges
The Group acts as a principal bearing the risk of under recovering of service costs from its tenants. The service charge income

earned from the renanes and che service costs incurred are shown separately in the conselidared income statement.

Service Income

Service income represcnrs service costs recoverable from renants and is recognised on the basis of services being provided.

Service Costs
Service costs represent service contracts entered into for the operation of the property, relating to letrable space for which it has
been agreed with 1enants to recover these amounts and are recognised on an accruals basis,

Property Expenses
Property expenses ure expenses that are incurred on the properry portfolin thar are not able to be recovered from tenants or relate

te vacant space. Property cxpenses are recognised on an accruals basis in the consclidated income starement.

Deterred Taxation
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on all tempaorary differences ar the balance sheer date berween
the tax bases of assets and ltabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Dieferred income 1ax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax base of assers and liabilitics and cheir

carrying amounts in the financial statements, with the following exceptions:

* where the tempuoiary difference arises from the initial recognicion of gowdwill or of an asser or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination that at the rime of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable prafit or loss;

*in respect of raxable tempaorary differences associared with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will nat reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

* deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that raxable profit will be available against which
deductible rtemporary differences, carried forward rax credirs or tax losses can be uritised.

The carrying amount of deferred income rax assers is reviewed ar each balance sheet dace and reduced to the extent that it is no

langer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available ro atlow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.



Deferred income rax assers and liabilities are measured ac the rax rares that are expected to apply to the year when the asser is
realised or the Hability is settled, based on tax rares and rax laws rhar have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance

sheer date.

Income tax retating to items recognised dirccily in equity is recognised in equity and not in rhe income statement.

Foreign Currency Translation

The presentation currency of the Group and functional currency of the company and its subsidiaries is the Euro. Transactions in
foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate of exchange ruling ac the dace of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominaced in foreign currencies are retranslated at the funcional currency rate of exchange ruling at che
balance sheer dare. All differences are taken to the consolidared income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translared using the exchange rate as at the date of initial transaction. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates ac the date when the fair value was
determined.

Share-Based Payments

Share-based payments are accounted for based on their fair value on grane date. The fair value is calculated by reference o an
option pricing model. T'he fair value of the share options granted in relation (o capital raises has been fully recognised (vested) on
the dace of grant as a cost relating 1o the issue of shares with a corresponding increase o other reserves.

Shares gramed to Directors are recognised in the income statement over the period that the services are received.

Comparatives

Certain comparative figures bave been reclassified {realised gain on sale of real estate fund units are now disclosed in movemenr in
fair value of real estate fund units, and only those expenses that are charged 1o tenants are recognised as service charge expenses,
with the remaining costs recognised in property operating expenses) to provide better understanding of the Group's financial
performance and conform wich che presentation adopted in these financial statements,

International Financial Reporting Standards to be Adopted in 2008 and Later
IAS 1 Amendment—/resenration of Financial Statements and [FRS 8—Operading Segments,

Upon adoption of IAS 1 Amendment, the Group will have to present a statement of comprehensive income, which will combine

all items of income and expense recognised the profic and loss together with ‘other comprehensive income’.

Upon adoption of IFRS 8, the Group will bave 10 adopt a full management approach to identify and measure the resulr of
repartable operating segments and report information on the hasis of thar which management uses o internally evaluate the

performance of operating segments.

3. INTEREST INCOME

Interest income for the year ended 31 December 2007 of €144.7 million (31 December 2006: €96.0 million), is primarily interest
income earned on the asset backed sccuritics, available-for-sale and asscr backed securities pledged under repurchase agreements
and real estate loans. Interest income for the year ended 31 December 2007 includes interest calculated using che effective interest
method of £135.6 million (31 December 2006: €87.9 million},

Real estate fund unit income for the year ended 31 December 2007 of €17.2 million (31 December 2006: €18.6 million) relates o
the income arising from the Group's investmens in the real estate fund unit as disclosed in Noze 15.

4. RENTAL INCOME AND PROPERTY OPERATING EXPENSES
Rental income for the year ended 31 December 2007 of €303.7 miltlion (31 December 2006: €152.5 million) represents rental
income earned on investment properties.
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Property operating expenses, including repairs and maintenance, arising from investment properties that generated rental income

for the year ended 31 December 2007 were £22.5 million (31 December 2006; €16.8 million).

5. SERVICE CHARGE INCOME AND EXPENSE
Service charge income for the year ended 31 December 2007 of €60.9 million (31 December 2006: €31.9 million) represents rhe

service costs recoverable from tenanrs.

Service charge expense for the year ended 31 December 2007 of €60.9 million (31 December 2006: €31.9 million) represents the
costs of operating the propertics, that are recoverable from tenants.

6. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2007 of €281.4 millien (31 December 2006: €150.3 million) comprises interest
expense incurred on the CDO bonds payable, bank borrowings and repurchase agreements. Interest expense is calculated using the
effecrive inrerest method.

Interese expense for the year ended 31 December 2007 includes €2.2 million of up front financing costs written off due o
the closure of CDO |, €7.3 million of gains on the closure of swaps relating to the sale of non-core assets in the Drive portfolio,
€2.0 million gains on the refinancing of the Wave portfolio, €5.3 million of gains on the closurc of a swap relating to the sale of
the real estate fund units, and €1.7 million of gains relating w0 the closure of additional swaps.

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Yeor Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

€000 €000

Professional fees® 12,668 5,764
Management fees (Note 29) 21,922 12,191
Incentive fees (Note 29) 22,162 2,717
Depreciation 63 —
Amorrisation of intangible asscts 593 144
nher* 10,482 5.207
67,890 26,023

“Profestional fees for the year ended 31 December 2007 includes €99 million of fres in relation 1o the sale of non-core asters (31 December 2006 nil).
““Included ithin other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2007 are reimbursement of property relased asset management services of €7.0 million
(31 December 2006: £3.9 million) to FIG LLC (See Note 29).

8. TAXATION EXPENSE

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2004

€000 C'00¢
Cureent tax
Germany 1,740 9
Luxembourg {249) 363
Total current tax 1,481 372
Deferred rax
Germany 19,381 3,366
Total deferred tax 19,381 3,366
Tota! tax expense 20,872 3,738




Reconciliation of the Total Tax Expense
The Group is exempt from Guernsey income tax. The tax expense in the consolidated income statement for the peried is higher
than Group’s Guernsey income rax rate of 0%, The difference is reconciled below:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 {£'000

Net profit before taxation 155,787 147,557
Tax on ordinary activities based on Guernscy tax of 09 (2006; 0%4) —_ —
Overscas taxation—Germany 21121 3.375
Overseas taxation—Luxembourg {249) 363
Total tax expense* 20,872 3738

*The average effective current tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2007 was 1.0% (31 December 20061 0.3%). The average effective total tax rate for the year ended
3t December 2007 was 13.49% (11 December 2006: 2.5%).

Analysis of deferred rax:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 Diecember 2006
€000 C'000

Tax losses carried forward {3,000) (713)
Temporary differences
Loan expense 274 472
Tenant improvements and leasing commissions 727 208
Accelerated capital allowance 3,490 3516
Revaluation of investment properties® 16,241 (167)
Acquisition cxpense (244) 65
Capital expenditure 992 —
Other 92 (15)
Change in tax rate*” {2,191) —_
Deferred tax expense 19,381 3,360

*This represents deferred tax on the difference between the fair valie and the Germun tax book value of the investment properties, excepe the Drive porifolio. The increase in
the fair value gain during 2007 bas resulied in higher deferred tax in the current period compared with the year ended 31 December 2006, The Group’s investment in the
underlying properiies in relation to the Drive partfolio is by way of units in an open ended real estate fund, No corporation tax is due on income gencrated or revaluation
gdins from its investment in the Drive porrfalie.

“*Un 6 July 2007, the German corporate tax rate was reduced from 26 375% to 15.825%, effective from 1 Janmuary 2008. As the change has been approved by the Bundesrat
and utkes effect from 1 January 2008, the deferved wax liabilisy has been calenlaced using the new tax rase,

Deferred rax on revaluation of investment properties:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 Year Ended 31 December 2006 Year Ended
{Decrease)/Increase 31 December 2007 Increasef{Decreasey 31 December 2006
in Fair Value Deferred Tax in Fair Value Deferred "Tax
Parefolio €'000 €000 C'H00 C'000
Mars* {62,194) 5,020 — —
Drive 9,027 — 79.439 —
Nave 49,143 6,848 5.548 1,573
Zama {686} — — —
Bridgc 25,962 4,635 {5,766) {1,517)
Retail 13,752 2,768 {£,102) {223)
35,004 19,241 78,119 (167)

“The Mars portfolio congists of 39 entities, euch bolding investment properties. Deferred sax represents the tax on the valuation gains at the individual enity level,
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Movement in taxation liability:

As at Asat
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

€000 ¢'000

Opening tax payable 6,016 2.278

“Fax paid —_— —_

Tax expense for the period 20,872 3,738

Closing taxation payable 26,888 6,016
Split between:

Current tax 2,030 539

Deferred tax 24,858 5477

Closing taxation payable 26,888 6,016

The raxation expensc for rthe year ended 31 December 2007 relates 1o the Group’s Luxembourg and German subsidiary com-
panies. The Company is 2 Guernsey, Chanael Islands limited company and is not subject to taxation. The Group’s subsidiaries,
EFL, CDO I, CDO I, CDC I, CDO [V, Puncannon and Feco, #re Irish registered companies and are structured to qualify as
securitisation companies under section 110 of the Taxes Consalidation Act 1997, It is envisaged that these companies will generate
minimal net income for Irish income tax purposes and ne provision for income taxes has been made for these companies.

The Group's German subsidiary companies, Longwave and Shortwave, are subject to German income tax on income arising from
their investment propertics, after the deduction of allowable debt financing costs and other allowable expenses. The raxation
accrual for the year ended 31 December 2007 includes a provision relating to these subsidiaries.

The Group's subsidiaries Bastion, Belfry, Iruss, Bridge, Turret, Mars, Zama, Tannenberg and Superstella are also subject to

German income ax on rental income ner of interest and other expense deductions on a cash basis.

The Group’s investment in the underlying properties in relation to the Drive portfolio and the Real Estate Fund Unics is by way of
units in an open-ended real estate fund. No corporation tax is due an income generated or revaluation gains from its investment
in these units,

The Group's Luxembourg subsidiaries are subject to Luxembourg tax on the net income earned within these subsidiaries.

9. LOSSES ON FOREIGN CURRENCY CONTRACTS, TRANSLATION AND SWAPS

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 000
Fair value movements on CUrrency swaps 23,274 _
Fareign currency translation loss on assets subject 10 currency swap {23,781) —
Sub-total {507) —
Other cuerency losses {1,488) (1.211}
Total currency losses {1,995) (1,211)

*The fareign currency swap is disclosed in Note 14.3.
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10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at As at
31 December 2007 3| December 2006
€000 000
Cash in hand and balances with banks 105,468 77,613
ECTGPROP liquidity requirement 41,239 45,086
Cash and cash equivalents 146,707 122,699

There is 2 minimum liquidity requirement of 5% of the value of ECTGPROD] (formerly known as Dresdner Grund-Fonds), the

subsidiary through which che Drive portfolio is held, in accordance with German Investment Companies Act requirements. At

3i December 2007, the liquidiry requirement of 5% has been invested in cash and high grade debr securities of shorr durarion.

11. ASSET BACKED SECURITIES, AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The following is a summary of the Group's asset backed securities, available-for-sale at 31 December 2007:

Current . . .
Face Amortised Gross Unrealised Carrying Weighted Average
Amount Cost Basis Gains Losses Value Average Mazrurity
000 CO0 €000 000 ooy Rating®  Coupon  Margin (Years)
Porttfolio I
CMBS 246,323 244677 88 {19,303} 225462 BBB+ 5.79% 1.27% 4.76
Other ARS 145,994 146,087 23 {11,425) 134,685 BBB 6.02% 1.20% 3.51
392,317 390,764 11 {30,728) 360,147 BBB 5838% 1.24% 4.29
Partfolio 11l
CMBS 248,896 247,672 14 {21,758) 225928 BBB+ 591% 1.45% 6.00
Other ABS 471,431 468,712 259  (42,109) 426862 BBB  6.14% 1.56% 3.56
720,327 716,384 273 {63,867) 652,790 BBB 6.06%  1,52% 4.40
Portfolio IV
CMBS 101,851 100,318 525 {4,238} 96,605 A+ 522% 0.91% 4,92
Other ABS 25,671 25,639 — {2,264} 23375 BBB+ 617% 247% 4.91
127,522 125,957 525 {6,502) 119,980 A 5.41% 1.23% 4.91
Paortfolio V
CMBS 320,887 320,263 — {23,906) 296,357 BBB+ 6.08% 1.48% 4.41
Other ABS 42,589 42,615 — {5,119} 37,496 BBB 5.80% 1.03% 5.30
363,476 362,878 - {29,025} 333,853 BBB+ 6.05% 1.42% 4.51
Other securities
CMBS —_ - —_ - -_ _ —_ —_ —_
Other ABS 15,235 15,235 - {8) 15,227 AAA 567% 0.90% 0.16
15,235 15,235 - {8) 15,227 AAA 567% 0.90% 0.16
Total portfolio 1,618,877 1,611,218 909 (130,130) 1,451,997 BBB+ 5.96% 1.40% 4.40
Restricted cash—cash to be invested 6,840
Total asset backed securities (including cash to be invested) 1,488,837

‘Average Ratings are calculived by reference 10 the fowess raving currensly assigned 10 eacl loan or secuvity by any of Moody Investor Services, Standard & Poor’s, and

Derivative Fitch and an arithmetic mean weighted by the current fuce amonnt of eack loan or iecurity.

CMBS—Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities.

Cther ABS = Other Assee Backed Securisies.

The securities within Portfolio [1, 111 and V are encumbered by CDO securitisations (Note 19).
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The following is a summary of the Group’s asset backed securities, available-for-sale ar 31 December 2006.

Current
Face Amorrised Graoss Unrealised Carrying Weighted Average
Amount Cost Basis Giains Losses Value Average Maturity
<'00¢ [WaliH) CO0n C000 ' Rating” {oupan Margin (Years)
Porttolio |
CMBS 140,407 140,391 687 (71) 141,607 BBRBR 5.19% 1.58% 3.83
Other ARS 259885 260,404 1,329 (356) 261,377 BBR 5.46% 1.82% 4.25

400,292 400,795 2,016 427 402,384 BBR 5.37% 1.74% 4.10

Portfolio 1)
CMB3 222,651 222,738 364 (252) 222,850 RER 4.98% 1.39% 5.34
Other ABS 199,197 199,581 316 (3706) 199,521 RBR 4.98% 1.29% 4.32

421,848 422,319 G80 (628) 422,371 BBB 4.98% 1.34% 4.86

Portfolio
CMRS 244,209 244,307 564 (303) 244,568 BBB 5.58% 1.96% 5.25
Other ABS 227,747 227,883 549 (186) 228,246 BBB 5.09% 1.39% 386

471,956 472190 1,113 (489) 472,814 BBB 5.34% 1.69% 4,58

Portfolio IV
CMRS 99,477 99,223 334 (57) 99,500 BBB 4.88% 1.63% 3.45
Other ARS 64,583 64,564 35 {715) 63,884 BRB 5.15% 1.70% 5.25

164,060 163,787 369 770 163,384 BBRB 4.99% 1.66% 4106

Other securities

CMBS 34,126 34,126 20 — 34,146 AAs 402%  037% 8.03
Other ABS 44,500 44,500 — — 44,500 AAA 474%  0.90% 0.73
78,626 78,626 20 — 78.646 AAA 4.42%  0.67% 3.90

1,536,782 1,537,717 4,198 (2316)  1,539.599 BB 5.16% 1.55% 4.45

Restricted cash—-cash to be invested 20,708
Total asset backed securities (including cash to be invested) 1,560,307

Average Ratings are enlealated by reference to the lowest rating currently wssigned to each loan or security by any of Moady Investor Services. Stundard e Poor’t, and
Derivative Fiteh and an arithmeric mean weighted by the current face amount of each loan or security,

CMBS—Cammercial Mortgage Backed Securities.

Other ABS— Other Asset Bicked Securities,

The securicies wirthin Porefolio [, 11 and 11f are encunibered by CDO securitisations (Note 19).

No asser backed securities, available-for-sate (31 December 2006: €78.7 million) have been pledged o third parties in sale and
repurchase agreements as at 31 December 2007. Thesc securities have been reclassified as pledged securities as follows:

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€'000 C'000
Asset backed securities, available-for-sale {includes cash to be invested) 1,488,837 1,481,661
Asset backed securities pledged under repurchase agreements — 78,646
Total asset backed securities 1,488,837 ,560,307




Cumulative ner unrealised (fosses)gains on available-for-sale securities and hedge instruments tecognised in the statement of

changes in equity were as follows:

As at Asat
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 C'oe0
Unreadised gains 909 4,198
Unrealised losses {130,130) (2,316)
{129,221) 1.882
12. REAL ESTATE RELATED LOANS
The following is @ summary of the Group's real estzce loans as ar 31 December 2007:
Current . i hied
Face Amortised Gross Unrealised Carrying Weighied Average
Amount Cost Basis  Gains  Losses Value Averzge Maruzity
000 {000 oo 000 [Ruill] Rating**  Coupen Margin {Years}
Real estate loans §73,956 570,816 - — 570,916 B* 7.20%  2.89% 427

"10G% of the Real Estate loan portfolio has ratings based on the minimum public or privae ratings obrained from Fitch, Moody's or Standard & Poar’s (SGP) rarings
“"Average Ratings are cxleututed by reference 1o the lowest raving currently asigned to each loan or security by any of Moody Investor Services, Standard & Poor’s, and

Derivative Fisch and an avithmetic mean weighted by the vurrent face amaunt of each loan or security,

As at 31 December 2006;

Current . . Weighied A
Face Amartised Gross Unrealised Carrying cighted Average
Amoyni Cost Basia Gains Losses Value Average Mauurity
C'000 £000 000 000 Cono Rating"" Coupon Margin {Years)
Real estate loans 430,988 428,370 — —_ 428,370 B+ 6.38% 2.88% 4.78

'579% of the Real Estate laan partfolio has ratings based on the minimum public or private ratings obtained from Fitch, Moedy's or Standard ¢ Poor'’s (SGP) ratings. 3%

of the Real Estate loans have been assigned un internal credis rating in anricipation of @ formal rasing, whick is currently being sought from S&P, Fitch and Moody's.
“‘Average Ratings are calculated by refesence to the lowest rating currently assigned 1o cach loan or security by any of Moody Investor Services, Standard & Poar’s, and

Derivative Fitch and an arithmetic mean weighted by the curreat f1ce amoune of each) loan a7 security.

13. OTHER ASSETS

As at Asal
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

€000 Co00
Unsettled security transactions 15,112 —
Interest receivable 24,246 16,872
Rent receivable 16,698 5,551
Prepaid expenses 233 736
Service charge receivable 10,296 2,632
Dcposit fee - 14,360
Fund income receivable — 7,900
Other accounts receivable® 15,403 21,486
81,988 69,537

*Other accounts receivable includes €12.0 million (31 December 2006: € nil) of leasing commissions and tenant incentives.
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14. DERIVATIVE ASSETS

As at Asat
31 December 2007 3 December 2006

€000 C000
Forcign cxchange forward contracts 1,412 238
Total return swaps — 288
Farcign currency swaps 23,274 —
Enerest rate swaps 20,153 22,164
Total derivative assets 44,839 22,690

14.1 Derivative Assets
Derivarive assets represent the fair value of interest rate swaps, total return swaps, foreign exchange forward contraces and foreign

CULTENCY SWips,

14.2. Total Return Swaps

At 31 December 2007, the Group had no roral return swaps (31 December 2006: €288,313), and no collateral deposiced
(31 December 2006: €4.75 million}. A total return swap is a derivative inscrument char is designaced as held for trading and
any gain or loss arising from the change in fair value of the instrument is recognised through profic and loss.

Total Return Swap 1

In March 2007, the Group entered into a toral return swap with a major investment bank, whereby it received a sum of all interest
(ar EURIBOR + 2.50%) and any positive changes in value from a referenced term loan with an inicial notional amount of €32.50
million and paid interest (art EURIBOR + 0.45%) on the notional amounr plus any negative change in value amounts from such
loan. Under the contract, the Group was required to post an inidal collateral deposit equivalent to 10% of the notional amount
and additional margin payable in the event of a decline in the value of the referenced term loan. In December 2007, the Group
unwound chis rortal return swap.

Total Return Swap 2

In November 2006, the Group entered into a toral rerurn swap with a major invesrment bank, whereby it received the sum of all
incerest {ar EURIBOR + 2.50%) and any positive changes in value from a referenced term loan wich an initial notional amount of
€10.70 million, and paid interest fat EURIBOR + 0.75%) on the notional amount plus any negative change in value amounts from
such loan. Under the contrace, the Group was required to post an initial collateral deposit equivalent to 14% of the notional
amount and additional margin payable in the evenr of « decline in the value of the referenced term loan. In August 2007, che
Group unwound chis toral return swap,

Total Return Swap 3

In December 2003, the Group entered into a tatal rerurn swap with a major investment hank, whereby it received the sum of
all ineerest {ar EURIBOR + 4.00%) and any positive change in value from a referenced rerm loan with an initial notional amount
of €25.85 million, and paid interest (at EURIBOR + 0.40%) on the notional amount plus any negative change in value amounts
from such loan. In May 2006, the subsidiary increased its holding in the existing total return swap by €6.6 million. Under che
coneract, the Group was required to post an initia} collateral deposit equivalent te 10% of the notional amount and additional
margin payable in the event of a decline in the value of the referenced rerm loan. In March 2007, the Group unwound this retal

return swup.

44



14.3 Foreign Currency Swaps

During 2007, a subsidiary entered into a series of foreign currency swaps with a major investment bank, wheseby it pays any Pound
Sterling andfor Swiss Franc interest or principal it receives (thraugh prepayments, repayments. or recoveries) on assers held and
receives the Euro equivalent of such principal sums converred at a fixed foreign exchange rate and with regards o interest Euribor
plus a spread.

15. REAL ESTATE FUND UNITS

Between July and Qcrober 2005, the Group purchased a €181 million interest in 1,500 Class A real estate fund units backed by a
portfolio of 394 prepercies in faly. The original rerm of the lease agreement was 9 years, automatically renewable for a further
9 years, unless terminated by the Agenzia del Demanio (2 public entity established by the ltalian Ministry of Finance), with
12 months prior notice. The properties had a toral occupancy of 100%. On 12 September 2006, 300 real estate fund units were
sold. On 24 QOctober 2007, the Group sold all its real estate fund unies for a sale price of €169.2 million, resulting in a realised gain
on book cost, net of associared sale costs, of €16.3 million or €0.26 per ordinary share.

As at As at
a1 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 C'000
At January 148,077 189,591
Return of invested capital (764) —_—
Additional eapital expenditure 411 2
Sale of units (164,475} (36,299}
[nereasel{decrease) in fair value 16,751 {5,217)
Total real estate fund units — 148,077
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Toral investment property consists of:
As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 C'o00
Tenant incentives und leasing commission (included in other assets) 12,035 —_
Investment property 5,171,086 3,308,872
Closing balance 5,183,121 3.308.872

The table below shows the items classified under investment property in the consalidated balance sheer (including capiralised
tenant incentives and leasing commissions classified in other assets) as at 31 December 2007:

Freehold Land Leaschold 31 Dacember 2007

and Buildings Property Total

(W) C'000 €000
Opening balance 3,182,130 126,742 3,308,872
Additions 2,312,141 54,944 2,367,085
Disposals (513,174} {15,575) (528,749)
Increase in minimum payments under head lease — 809 909
Increase in fzir value 44,397 {9,293) 35,004
Total 5025494 157,627 5,183,121
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As at 31 December 2006:

Freehaold

l.and and Leaschald 31 December 2006

Buildings [roperty "Towal

7000 CO00 04D

Opening batance 448,060 15.480 463,540
Additions 2,657,957 86,408 2,744,365
[nerease in minimum payments under head lecase —_ 22,848 22,848
Increase in fair value 76,113 2,006 78,119
Total 3,182,130 126,742 3,308,472

Investment properties are stated ar fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by external valuers. The

main factors the valuers consider when determining 2 fair valuation are the following: passing rent, void periods, and relettability

and marketability of properties. The fair value represents the amount 2t which the asset could be exchanged berween a knowledge-

able, willing buver and a knowledpeable, willing seller in an arm’s-length rransaction at the date of valuation, in a2ccordance with
& buy B g B

international valuation standards,

Lease Ell'r:ll'lgﬂl‘llcl‘lts QVer (hc iand on which the 33 investment propcr(ics arc built havc ll[lCXPier erms ranging from 7 years o]

90 years.

A recanciliarion of invesument property valuations to the balance sheet carrying value of property {including tenant incentives and

leasing commissions wichin other assets) is shown helow:

As at As ar
31 December 2007 31 december 2006
€000 €¢'oon
Invesement property at market value 5,156,412 3,283,072
Minimum payments under head leases separately included
in trade and other payables on the balance shee 26,709 25.800
Balance sheet carrying value of investiment property 5,183,121 3,308,872
Schedule of Minimum Lease Payments under Finance Leases
Total Value Present Value Toral Value Present Value
a1 December 2007 31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2006
€000 €000 €000 ¢'00n
Under { year 1,572 1,393 1,375 1,181
From 2 12 5 years 6,574 5,044 5,736 4,650
More chan 5 vears 108,281 20,272 99.423 19,869
Total 116,427 26,709 106,534 25,800

Additional Information

The table helow provides additional informarion for various portfolios within the group at 31 December 2007:

Property Term “Term Financing to
Valuation® Financing Properry Valuation
Portfolie 000 Co00 %
Mars 1,935,790 1,411,628 72.9%
Drive 1,792,575 1,306,946 72.9%
Bridge 524,270 367,381 70.1%
Wave 292,677 208,130 71.1%
Zama 52,600 39,347 74.8%
Retail 558,500 415,389 74.4%
Total 5,156,412 3,748,821 T2.7%

“Properiy valnation excludes the leaschold gross-up of €267 million,
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The tables below provide additional information for various portfolios within the group at 31 December 2006:

Propery Term Term Financing w
Valuation® Financing Property Valuation
Pordolic 000 €00 %
Drive 2,051,596 1,511,443 73.0%
Rridge 496,120 373,850 75.4%
Wave 328,520 240,397 72.3%
Retail 406,830 311,944 75.9%
Total 3,283,072 2,437,640 73.7%
*Property valuation excludes the leaschald grogs-up of €25.8 million.
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
As at As at
31 December 2007 3t 1december 2000
€000 Cot0
Cost
Balance at 1 January 1,981 551
Additions 1,833 1,430
Balance at 31 December 2007 3.814 1,981
Amaortisation
Balance at 1 fanuary (153} )]
Charge for the perind (593} (144)
Balance at 31 December 2007 (746} (153)
Carrying amount
Ar 1 January 1,828 542
At 31 Decemhber 2007 3,068 1,828

Intangible assers represent capitalised computer software costs and are amortised over a period of five years,

18. FIXTURES & FITTINGS

As at Asat
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€000 €000
Cost
Balance ar 1 Junuary - -
Additions 817 —_
Balance at 31 December 2007 817 —
Depreciation
Balance at 1 January — —_
Charge for the period {63) _—
Balance at 31 December 2007 {63) —
Carrying amount
At 1 January —_ —
At 31 December 2007 754 —
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| 19. CDO BONDS PAYABLE
| As at 31 December 2007:

Current Weighted Weighted

Face Carrying Average Weighted Average

Amount Amount Cost of Average Marurity

Class Rating Cooo €000 Financing Margin {in Years)
cpolu A, B and C notes AAATAAIA 372,431 369,830 5.23% 0.46% 7.5
cpom A, B, Cand D notes AAAIAAIAIBBB 704,250 699,156 5.36% 0.48% 7.5

Duncannon CRE AAAIAA/AIBRB+/BBB/

CDO 1 Ple A B, C. D, Eand X notes  BBB-/BB+/BB/BB- 681,356 673,760 4.96% 0.67% 6.4
Total 1,758,037 1,742,746 5.18% 0.55% 7.1

None of the CDO bonds are due to be repaid within one year of the balance sheed date.

On 21 May 2007, Eurogastle Investment Limited delivered 2 redemption notice along with rhe subordinated notes of CDO [ Ple

to the trustee requesting the optional redemption of CDO 1 PIcs investment. On che same day, the redemption notice was

accepted, agreed, and signed by the trusice.

On 20 June 2007, CDO 1 Plesald all of its remaining assets and repaid all outstanding notes. Unamortised ﬁnanciﬁg costs relaring
to the issue of the Class A and B notes of €2.15 million were writeen off during the period and is recognised within interest

expense.

On 1 June 2007, holders of 100% of the Class A CDO I Bonds (the “contralling class™) agreed 1o an “upsizing” of CDO 1 M

As at 31 December 2006:

be actively managed by the Manager. €119 million of the collateralised bonds are held within rhe Group.

which involved che issuc of a further €250 million CIDO bonds and subordinated notes in total across the various classes.

On 30 July 2007, the Group suceessfully refinanced a pool of European loans and securities held by its consalidared subsidiary
Duncannen CRE CDO 1 PLC (“*Duncannon”) through an issue of €800 million of collateralised bonds and revolving facility
obligations, €730 million of which has been rated by Srandard & Poor’s and Fitch. Duncannon will maineain a pool of
pan-European eredir sensitive debr invesements in accordance with the terms of its collareralised security offer documents and will

Current Weighted Weighted
Face Carrying Average Weighted Average
Amount Amount Cost of Average Maurity
Class Rating, €000 c'o00 Financing Margin (in Years)
CDO1 A and B notes AAAIAA 351,000 348,676 4.29% 0.599% 5.4
cDoll A.Band Cnotes  AAA/AA/A 406,278 402,879 4,33% 0.47% 8.5
CDO A Band Cnotes  AAAJAAIA 462,500 458,720 4.17% 0.47% 8.5
Total 1,219,778 1,210,275 4.26% 0.51% 7.5
None of the CDO bonds are due to be repaid within one year of the balance sheer dare.
20. BANK BORROWINGS
The bank borrowings comprise:
As at As zt
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
€'000 C'n00
Term finance (Note 20.1) 3,914,003 2,534,024
Revalving credit faciliry (Noic 20.2) 143,049 —
Orher bank financing—under 1 year (Note 20.3) 59,260 79,488
Other bank financing—over 1 year (Notwe 20.3) - 67,051
Total 4,116,212 2,680,563




20.1 Term Financing

Current Face Amount Carrying Amount
<CHoo o0 Hedged
Month As At Asat As At As at Weighted Averape

Porrfolios Raised 31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2007 31 Decernber 2006 Funding Cost Maturicy
Debt

investments
CDO IV Jul 2005 165,230 — 165,182 — 5.29% Aug 2008
Investrment

property
Mars—iixed Jan 2007 1,029,465 — 1,008,975 — 4.7 1% Jul 2014
Mars—iloating  Jan 2007 402,910 — 402,653 — 5.05%" Jul 2008
Drive Fcb 2006 1,317,066 1,525,000 1,306,946 1,511,443 4.22% Jan 2013
Bridge Oct 2006 372,090 372,090 367,381 373,856 4.74% Jan 2014
Wave Apr 2007 210,000 242,803 208,130 240,397 4.94% Apr 2014
Zama Fcb 2007 39,896 — 39,347 —_— 4,97% May 2014
Turret May 2006 147,556 147,556 146,041 146,763 4.93% May 2016
Truss Dec 2005 85,280 85,280 84,610 84,537 4.93% Feb 2016
Belfry Aug 2005 56,240 56.240 55,512 55,433 4.85% Oct 2015
Rapid Aug 2007 54,500 — 52,735 4.96% Nov 2017
Tannenberg May 2007 52,960 — 51,051 — 4.92% Qct 2014
Bastion Sep 2005 26,500 26,500 25,440 2521 4.44% Sep 2012

3,794,463 2,455,469 3,748,821 2,437.640 4.61%

Real estate

fund units
FII* units Jul 2005 - 97,500 - 96,384 _— —
Total 3,959,693 2,552,969 3,914,003 2,534,024

“This is the rate of the loan that is effective from 31 January 2007, The cffective rase that applied during the fourih quarter was 4,80%.

Debt Investments

On 14 July 2003, the Group through Euarocastle CDO [V PLC entered into a €400 million 3 year extendable warehouse facility
with a major UK bank. This facility was previously used to refinance a significant pare of the portfolio previously financed under
shore-term repurchase agreements, and is currently being used to finance a portfelio of asset backed securities and real estate
related loans. The lender uses 2 rating agency CDO model to determine the level of equity contribution the Group is required o
make to support the portfolio from time ro dime. The facility is secured over, inter alia, the collateral making up the portfolio. The
margin payable to the lender depends on the deemed raring levels of the porfolio as determined by the rating agency model.

In January 2008, the CDO IV term financing was extended with a multi-currency term loan for approximarely €127 million
maturing on 1 December 2009 (refer to Note 32).

As at 31 December 2007, there was €165.2 million drawn on the warehousing facility (31 December 2006: nil).

Investment Properties

In order to finance the investment properey portfolios, the Group entered into non-recourse loan facilities as described in the table
above. These facilities are secured in the customary manner for German real estate lending granting security over, inter alia,
the real estate purchased as well as rent receivables and bank accounts of the borrower. Interest in respect of these facilities is
pavable quarterly.
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In April 2007, the group refinanced the Wave portfolio with a €210 million facility, of which the full amount of €210 million
had been drawn ar 31 December 2007, The facilicy is for 7 years from the dace of signature, and after allowing for an interest race
swap on €210 million, the weighted average funding cost was 4.94%.

The Drive Porrfolio was financed ar signing with a 7 year €1,525 million facility censisting of a senior and junior loan of
€840 million and €685 million, respectively. During the period, following assers sales, the facility was partially repaid, teaving
ewrstanding balances of €727 mitlion and €590 million for the senior and junior loans respectively. €50 million of the junior loan
bears interest at Euribor + 1.13% to maich a liquidiry reserve maintained by ECTGPROP1 (formerly known as Dresdner Grund-
Fonds), whereas the remaining portion bears a fixed rate. The senior loan has a weighted average furnding cost of 3.83% and che
junior loan has a weighted average funding cost of 4.64%.

The Mars Portfolio was financed ar signing with a non-recourse €1,579 million term loan ar an effective interest rate cost of
4.75%, the go-forward rare from 31 January 2007 is 4.80%. During the period. following asser sales, the facility was partially
repaid. The loan now comprises a 6.6 year fixed rate loan of €1,029 million and a 0.6 year floating rate loan of €403 million. The
floating rate loan has been fully hedged with an interest rate swap with a nominal value of €430.5 mitlion. In addition to chis, the
Group is required to draw a capital reserve line of €60 million prior 1o securitisation of the loan by the lender. In the interim,
a commirment fee of 0.375% is payable in connection with the capital reserve,

Real Estate Fund Units

The real estate fund units were financed through a non-recourse 13 year loan facility to finance its acquisition of 1,500 Class A
Units in Fondo Immobili Pubblici. The facility was secured over, inter alia, the 1,500 Class A Units, an assignmen of receivables
under the units, a pledge over bank accounts, and over shares in the borrower. The interest rate an the loan was Euribor + 1.95%,
payable semi-annually, On 20 September 2006, the Group sold 300 Class A Units (20% of the total holdings), resulting in a
pro-rated repavment of the finance facility, On 20 Seprember 2007, the fund part-distributed the proceeds of an underlying asset
sale resulting in a pro-rated reduccion in the finance facility. On 24 QOctober 2007, the Group sold all of the remaining units, and
repaid che facility.

20.2 Revolving Credit Facility

In May 2006, the Group extended a revolving €150 million credit facility with a syndicare of commercial investment banks
as a means of securing access to working capital. The facility is secured by receivables flowing from the Group, with security
assignments of the Group’s rights under its management agreement with Fortress Investment Group LLC, The faciliry conrains a
number of financial covenants including leverage ratios refating to both the debt investment portfolio and the real escare portfolio,
and interest cover ratios. The interest rate on drawn amounts was Euribor + 1.5% p.a., while on undrawn amounts it was 0.4% p.a.
In Ocrober 2006, che facility was increased ro €300 million. In October 2007, the facility was extended at a new margin of
Euribor + 2.0% p.a., with no change in the interest rate on undrawn amounts, until October 2008.

As at 31 December 2007 the amount drawn on chis facilicy was €144.2 million (31 December 2006: nil).

20.3 Other Bank Financing

In May 2006, in order to finance the participation in certain B note loans, the Group entered into a 3 year revolving credit facifity
with an investment bank. The facility contains a number of financial covenants. lts mark-to-marker exposure is derermined by the
Investment Manager, based on marker quotations. Interest rates on drawn amounts depend upon the loan to value and collaterat
quality of the underlying lender wich draw-dewns currently bearing rates between 0.75% to 1.75% above Libor and Euribor, The
security Facility was backed by a security assignmenc over the financed asset. As at 31 December 2007, chis facility had been repaid
(31 December 2006: €67.1 million).
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In August 2006, in order to finance the sub-participation in a real estate loan secured on propertics leased o a leading German
retailer, the Group entered into an €80 million, 364 day credit facility with an investment bank, which was subscquently extended
to expire in August 2008. The faciliry contains a number of financial covenants including a requirement to deliver cash collateral
to the lender equal to the excess of any mark-to-marker decline in the underlying security over €200,000. tncerest races on the
drawn amounts are 1.50% above Euribor. The security facilicy is backed by a security assignment over the financed asset and was
drawn in an amounr of €59.3 million ar 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006: €79.5 millien).

Subsequent o 31 December 2007, the Group has extended the above facility ince a €107 million term loan maturing on 30
September 2009 (refer to Note 32), and negoriated the removal of the mark-to-market covenants during the term of the faciliy.

21. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Group’s consolidated subsidiary Eurocastle Funding Limired may enter into transactions under master repurchase agreements
with certain major invesrmenr banks to finance the purchase of available-for-sale securities. The obligations under those
agreements are guaranteed by the Group. The terms of the repurchase agreements provide for interest o be calculared with
reference o floating rate benchmarks (i.e. Euribor or Sterling Libor) which reset or roll monthly, quarterly or semi-annually, wich
the corresponding security coupon payment dates, plus an applicable spread.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group did not have any transactions outstanding under any master repurchase agreements
(31 December 2006: €75.5 million ar 3.84% weighred average financing).

22, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at Asat
31 December 2007 3t December 2006

€000 000
Security deposit 6,249 5421
Interest payable 37,008 22,869
Duc to Manager (note 29) 26,951 7,508
Accrued expenses & other payables® 51,638 57.501
Total trade and other payables 121,846 93,299

“Accrued expenses and orher payables include the purchase price retention on the Mars portfolio of €12.3 million (31 December 2006: nil).

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic carnings per share is calculared by dividing net profic/(loss) after taxation by the weighted average number of shares of
ordinary stock outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculared by dividing net profit/(loss) available to ardinary sharcholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares ourstanding plus the additional dilutive effect of porenrial ordinary shares during rhe period.

The Group’s potential ordinary shares during the period were the share options issued under its share option plan. There have been
no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares since the reporting date and before the completion of
the financial statements.

The foltowing is a reconciliation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding on a dilured basis.

As at Asat
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, outstanding, basic 63,787,016 44,956,083
Dilutive effece of ordinary share options 1,782,543 1,804,543
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, diluted 65,569,559 46,760,626
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24, SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
As ar 31 December 2006, there were 63,519,083 shares issued and ourstanding.

On 19 January 2007, 20,000 options with a strike price of €10.00 per share were exercised.

On 7 March 2007, 237.445 options with an average strike price of €21.26 were exercised.

On 12 Aptil 2007, 15,000 options with a strike price of €10.00 were exercised.

On 7 May 2007, 10,573 options with an average strike price of €11.89 were exercised.

On 21 May 2007, 8,639 options with an average strike price of €16.46 were exercised

On 29 May 2007, 8,891 options with an average strike price of €17.37 were exercised.

On 2 July 2007, 2,429 share opticns with a strike price of €18.00 were exercised.

On 20 August 2007, 3,000 shares were issued ro the Direcrors of the Group.

On 1 Ocrober 2007, 13,238 share options with an average strike price of €12.81 were exercised.

On 10 October 2007, 1,000 shares were issued o the Dirccrors of the Group.

On 11 Ocrober 2007, 34,305 share options with a strike price of €10.00 were exercised.

On 12 Ocrober 2007, 29,031 share options with a strike price of €10.00 were exercised.

©On 15 October 2007, 25,000 share options with a strike price of €10.00 were exercised.

As at 31 December 2007, there were 63,927,634 shares issued and ouestanding.

The weighred average exercise price of share oprions during the year was €17.L0 (31 December 2006: €10.00).
Under the Group’s Articles of Association, the Directors have the authoriry to affect the issuance of additional ordinary shares or

1o create new classes of shares as they deem necessary.

Other Reserves
Other reserves represent the fair value at the grant dace of unexercised share aptians, granted ro the Manager in December 2003,
Tune 2004, June 2005, February 2006 and December 2006. (Note 27)

25. HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group’s policy is to hedge its exposure to interest rates and foreign currencies on a case-by-case basis. Hedge accounring is
applied o cash flow and fair value hedges of interest rate risk exposures, Incerest rare swaps under which the Group pays a fixed
rate and receives a floating rate have been used to hedge the interest rare risk on floating race long-term bank borrowings. Interest
rate swaps where the Group pays a fixed rate and receives a floating race have been used to hedge che fair value of the available-for-
sale assers in Feco Sub SPV Ple.

At 31 December 2007, cumulative unrealised gains on hedge instruments were €30.3 million (31 December 2006: €23.5 million),
The unrealised gains comprise the value of the novated swaps of €25.1 million (31 December 2006: €3.2 million) and the fair
value of the interest rate swaps of €5.2 million (31 December 2006: €20.3 million).

The gain or loss on measuremenr of the fair value of the interest rate swaps has been recognised in the statemenc of changes in
equity to the extent thar the swaps are effecrive, while gains and losses retaced to fair value hedges have been recognised in the
income statement,



The details of interest rate swaps entered into by the Group in respect of certain cerm financing agreements are as follows:

Cash Flow Hedges

31 December 2007 Wave Fipe ‘Tarre1®® Lama™"" Mars 177*” Marg 244 Mars 3*7°°°
Nominal amount (€000} 210,000 — —_ —_ —_ 220,000 210,500
Pay rate 4.03% — - - - 4.00% 3.92%
Receive rate 3 Month 3 Manth 3 Month

Euribor — — —_ — Euribor Euribor
Remaining life 63 — —_ — —_ 6.6 6.6
Fair value of swaps {£'000) 5213 — — — — 6,063 5,774

*On 24 Octaber 2007, the Group sold all its real estate fund units, repard the financing and tloscd ous the related swap, realising a gain on the closure of the muap of
€5.2 million.
*As at 21 January 2007, an interest rate swap agreement relating to the Tireet portfolio was novated to the lending bank in conjuncrion wish the loan agreement. The
positive fair vafie of €0.9 million as as the dare of novasing the suntp bhas been recorded within the hedging reserve and will be recycled through the income statement.
“*As ar 7 May 2007, an interest rate swap agreement relating 10 the Zama porifolio was nevated to the lending bank in conjunceion with the loan agreement. The positive
fair value of €0.9 miltion as ar the date of novating the sunp has been recorded within the hedging reserve and will be recycled through the income statement.
*“*As ar 31 January 2007, an intevest vate swap agreemens relating 1o the Mars porifolio was novated 1o the lending bank in conjunction with the loan agreement. The
positive fair vatue of €18.0 million as ai the dare of novaring the swap has been recorded within the hedging reserve and will be recyeled through the income statement.
*****these hedges are dremed ineffective for hedge accounting purposes and any gains or losses are recognised in the income suisement.
Unallocated

31 December 2006 Wave F1P Turect Zama Mars Hedge®
Neminal amount (€'000) 210,000 97,500 58,108 39,586 1,000,000 83,324
Pay rate 3.47% 3.45% 3.96% 4.12% 3.87% 4.13%
Receive rate 3Month 6 Month 3 Month 3 Menth 3 Month 3 Month
Euribor Euribor Euribor Euribor Euribor Euribor
Remaining life 6.3 1.0 2.4 6.9 7.4 7.1
Fair value {€'000) G411 2,812 489 {212) 10,816 (479

“The unallocated hedge represents interest rate siwaps undertaken 1o hedge the interest rate risk on forecasied ransactions, The fair value of €1.9 million (31 December 2006:
€0.3 million] on the remsluarion of the €265 million (31 December 2006: €83 million) interest vase swap has beent recorded within the income statement.

Fair Value Hedges

Feco EURD B Feeo CHF B Feco CHF B Feco GRP Feco** GBI

31 December 2007 Nates Noics Neotes Notes Nenes
Nominal amount {(€'000) 29,895 3,685 2,228 30,533 41,539
Pay rate 3.38% 2.00% — 4.63% —_
Receive rate 3 Months 3 Months 3 Months

Euribor  CHF Libor — Libor -
Remaining life 5.9 2.6 - a9 -
Fair value (€000 1,366 92 56 501 681
Fair value of assets actributable 1o the risk hedged (€°000) 1,352 92 56 486 661

“The amount stared it 4 eure notional, mark-co-mavkes equivalent of CHI supy.
**The amount sstted is & enre notional, mark-to-marker equivalent of GBI swaps.

Feeo EURO B Feca CHF 8 Feco' CHE B Feca GBP Feee** GBP

31 December 2006 Notes Nores Notes MNotes Notes
Nominal amoum (€'000) 11,947 3,725 2,315 36,694 54,439
Pay rate 2.87% 2.00% — 4.61% —
Reccive rate 3 Months 3 Months 3 Months

Euribor CHF Libor _— Libor —
Remaining life 3.6 3.3 —_ 4.4 —
Fair valuc (E'000) 455 78 48 1,049 1,557
Fair value of assers ateributable to the risk hedged (€000} 446 79 49 1,021 1,516

*The amount stated is a cure notienal, mark-to-market equivalent of CHE swaps.
**The amount stated is @ cura notional, mark-to-market equivalent af AP tinaps,
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk Management
This section provides details of the Graup’s exposure ro risk and describes the methods used by the Group to control risk.
The most important types of financial risk to which the Graup is exposed are market, credit, liguidity, interest rate and foreign

currency risk.

Capital Risk Management Policy

The Group’s objecrives when managing capital are o safeguard the Group’s ability to conrinue as a going concern in order o
F ) ging cap g P ) going

provide recurns for Shareholders and benefits o other Stakeholders, as well as maintain an optimal structure to reduce the overall

cost of capital.

The Group recognises the effect on Sharcholder returns of the level of equity capital employed within rhe Group and seeks to
maineain a prudent balance between the advantages and flexibility afforded by a strong capiral position and the higher returns on
equity thar are possible with greater leverage.

fn order to maintain an adequate capital structure, the Group maintains a rarional dividend policy and also considers other
strategics such as sale assets to reduce debt and rerurn on capital to Shareholders,

The Group maintains its capital position on the basis of the leverage ratia, This rario is calculared as net borrowing compared to
roral capiral. At 31 December 2007, rhe toral capial under management was €1.46 billion (31 December 2006: €1.46 billion).

During 2007, the Group’s leverage ratio was ar 80.2% compared to 73.3% in 2006. The increase in leverage is predominantly due

to the acquisition of the Mars portfolio.

Market Risk

The Group’s exposure to markert risk is comprised mainly of movements in the value of its invescments.

The Group’s real esrate investment assets are based in Germany and are subject to general property marker risks. These risks are
assessed by the Group ar the poinr of acquisition and are then monitored an 2n ongoing basis. In addition, external valuations of
the Group's real estate assets are obtained during each financial year,

The Group's securities are predominantly floating rate and as such are valued based on a market credic spread over Euribor and
Libar and CHIF benchmarks for eura and non-euro denominated assets respectively. Increases in the credit spreads above such
benchmarks may affecr the Group’s ner equity, ner income or cash flow direcely through their impact on unrealised gains or losses
on available-for-sale securities, and cherefore its ability to reatise gains on such securities, or indirectly through its impacr on its

ability to borrow and access capital.

Ar 31 December 2007, a 100 basis poinr increasef(decrease) in the credit spreads would increase/(decrease) net book value and
equity by €71.2 miilion (31 December 2006: €68.4 million).

Interest Rate Risk
The Group's primary interest rate exposures relate to its real eseare and ather assec backed securities, loans and floating rare debr

obligations, as well as its interest rate and total recurn swaps.

Changes in interest rates affect net inrerest income, which is the difference between the inrerest income earned on assets and the

interest expense incurred in connection with debr obligarions and hedges.

The Group’s general financing stracegy focuses on the use of macch-funded structures, meaning that it seeks to match the maruri-
ties of its debt obligations with the marurities of its invesrments to minimise the risk that the Group will have to refinance jts
liabilities prior to the marurities of its assets, reducing the impact of changing interest rates on its earnings. In addirion, the Group
match funds interest races on its invesements with like-kind debe direcely or through the use of interest rate swaps, However, based
on a variety of factors, the Manager finances certain assets on 2 shore-rerm basis, including the use of repurchase agreements,
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Based on the Group's primary interest rate exposure to floating rate financial assets and financial liabilitics held ar 31 December
2007, including the effect of hedging instruments, a 100 basis point increase/(decrease) in interest rates would increase/(decrease)

earnings by approximately €0.7 million per annum (31 December 2006: €3.5 million per annumj.

Changes in the level of interest races also can affect the Group's ability to acquire securities and loans and its ability 1o realise gains
from the sertlement of such assets. Increasing interest rates would decrease the value of the fixed rate assets because higher required
yields result in lower prices an existing fixed rate assets in order to adjust their yield upward to meet the markee. Asar 31 December
2007, a 100 basis point change in interest rates would impace the net book value and equity by approximately €0.3 million
(31 December 2006: €0.5 million).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s primary foreign currency exchange rate exposures relate to its sterling and Swiss franc denominated portfolio of
securities and loans. Changes in the currency exchange rares can adversely impacr the fair values and earnings streams of the
Group’s non-euro denominared assets and liabilities. The Group has mitigated this impact through 2 combination of (i} sterling

denominated financing and (i) rolling forward foreign exchange contacrs to hedge its net non-curo equiry investment.

In connection with the Group's purchase of its available-for-sale real estate and other asser backed securities and real estare loans,

the foreign currency risk is covered through forward foreign currency exchange coneraces and foreign currency swaps.

Given the mitigating factors described above, a fluctuation in rhe forcign currency exchange rates would not have a significant

impact on the Group’s operating profit.

Credit Risk
The Group is subject to credit risk with respect 1o its investments in real esrate, and other asset backed securitics and loans.

The securiries the Group invests in are generally junior in right of payment of interest and principal to one or more senior classes,
but benefir from the support of one or more subordinate classes of securities or other form of credit support within a securitisation
transaction. While the expected yield on these securities is sensitive to the performance of the underlying assets, the more subordi-

nated securities are designed to bear che first risk of default and loss.

The Group further minimises credir risk by actively monitoring irs securities portfolios and the underlying credit quality of its
holdings and, where appropriate, repositioning its investments o upgrade the credit quality and yicld on the investmens.

The Group's securities pertfolio is diversified by asset type, industry, location and issuer. This diversification minimises the risk of
capital loss. At 31 December 2007, the Group’s securities, which serve as collateral for its CDO financings and other borrowings,
had an overall weighted average credir rating of approximarely BBB- (31 December 2006: BBB-).

The maximum credit risk exposure as at 31 December 2007 without taking account of any cotlateral held or other credit enhance-
ments is the full carrying value of all financial assets on che Balance Sheet, €2.3 billion (31 December 2006: €2.3 billion).

The Group’s available-for-sale asser backed securities and real estate loans portfolio was split berween countries within Europe

as follows:

31 December 2007 3 December 2006

Number of Face Number of

Securities/ Value Location Sccurities! Face Yaluc Location
Loans €000 Split Loans C'o00 Splic

United Kingdom 89 972,570 44.4% 72 962,894 48.9%
laly 19 278,904 12.7% 14 250,846 12.7%
Germany 33 433,550 19.8% 31 396,076 20.1%
Pan-European 13 204,589 9.3% 7 99,391 5.1%
France 11 103,287 4.7% 11 94,839 4.8%
Orther 36 199,933 9.1% 23 163,724 8.4%
201 2,192,833 100% 158 1,967,770 100%
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The Group’s hedging and trading rransactions using derivative inscruments zlso involve cerrain additional risks such as counter-
party credit risk, the enforceability of hedging contracts and the risk that unanticipared and significant changes in inrerest
rates will cause a significant loss of basis in the contract. The counterparties to the Group’s derivarive arrangements are major
financial institurions with investment grade credit rarings with which the Group and its affiliates may also have other financial
relationships. As a result, it is nor anticipated that any of these counterparties will fail ro meer their obligations.

Liquidity Risk
The Group's ability to execute its business strategy, particularly che growth of its investment portfolio, depends ro a significant
degree on the Group’s ability ro obtain addirional capiral.

The Group's primary source of funds for liquidity consist of net cash provided by operating activitics, borrowings under loans and
credir facilities and rhe issuance of debr and equicy securities. The Group's loans and debrt sccurities are generally secured directly
over irs assets. The Group expects that its cash in hand and cash flow provided by operations will satisfy its liquidiry needs
with respect to its current investment portfolio over the next rwelve months. The Group expects to meet its long-term liquidirty
requirements, specifically the repayment of its debt obligations, chrough additional borrowings and the liquidacion, refinancing or

repayment of its assets at macurity.

A significant portion of the Group's invesenients are financed with collateralised debe obligations, known as CDOs. 1f spreads for
CDOQ liabilities widen or if demand for such liabilities ceases w exist, then the ability to execute future CDO financings wilt be
testricted. Proceeds from the sale of real estate and other asscc backed securitics rhat serve as collaweral for che Group’s CDO
financings, including gains thereon, are required to be retained in the CDO strucrure until the relared bonds are redired and are

therefore not available to fund current cash needs.

The Group’s real estare securities are financed long-term and their credit status is continuously monitored; therefore, these
investments are expecred to generare a generally srable current return, subject to interest race fluctuations, The Group’s operating
real estate is also financed long-term and primarily leased ra credit tenants with lang-term leases and is cherefore also expected
generate generally scable current cash flows.

As described in Note 20.2, the Group has access to temporary working capiral through a revolving €300 miilion credir facility.

The tables below represent the deails of che remaining contractual maruricies of financial assers and liabilities, excluding trade

receivables and payables as at 31 December 2007 and 2006:

Total

QOutstanding at Within 1to5 Over
31 December 2007 31 December 2007 1 Year Years 5 Years
Type €000 €000 €000 €000
Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 146,707 146,707 —_ —_—
Assct backed securitics, available-for-sale (includes cash to be invested) 1,488,837 128,968 797,887 561,982
Real estate related foans 570,916 — 438,492 132,424
Derivative assets 44,839 29,272 9,836 6,519
Total assets 2,251,299 304,947 1,246,215 700,925
Liabiities
Interest payable* 37,008 267,992 982,648 363,770
CDO bonds payable 1,742,746 — — 1,742,746
Bank loans** 4,116,312 770,144 — 3,346,168
Finance leases payable®** 26,709 1,572 6,574 108,281
Total liabilities 5,922,775 1,039,708 989,222 5,560,965

‘neerest payable reflects the interest payable over the life of the finuncing.
**Bank loans toralling €770 million maturing within | year include €165 million of loans in C1YO IV and €59.3 million of sther short-term financing. As described in
Subsequent Events—Note 32, these loans were extended to mature on | Decermber 2009 and 30 Scpterber 2009, respectively.
“**Finance leases payable represens afl tease payments dwe sver the lives of the leases.



3%. - Teal

. Quistanding at Within lw3 Over
31 December 2006 v 31 December 2006 1 Year Years 5 Years
Type €000 €000 C000 €000
Assets
Cash and cash cquiv;llcms 122,699 122,699 — —
Assct backed securities, available-for-sale {includes cush to be invested) 1,481,661 126,619 827,809 527,233
Assct backed sceurities, pledged under repurchase agreements 78,646 44,500 — 34.146
Real estate related loans 428,370 — 262,033 166,337
Real estate fund units 148,077 148,077 — —
Deerivative assets 22,690 2,706 12,642 8.584
Total assets 2,282,143 444,601 1,102,484 736,300
Liabilities
[nterest payable* 22,869 173,211 667,852 345,500
CDOQ bonds payable 1.210,27% — — 1,210,275
Bank loans 2,680,563 79,488 67051 2,534,024
Repurchase agreements 75,490 75.490 — —
Finance lease payable*” 25.800 1,375 5736 99,423
Derivative liabilities 212 40 188 7
Total liabilities 4,015,209 329,604 740,827 4,189,229

*Interest payable refleces the intevest payable aver the life of the financing.

*Finance leases payable vepresent all lease payments due over the liver of the leases.

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Sct out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group’s financial instruments thae are

carried in the financial srarements.

As at Asat As at As ac
31 December 2007 31 December 2006 31 December 2007 31 Ldecember 2006
Carrying Value Carrying Valuc Fair Value Fair Valuc

€000 €000 €000 004
Financial Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 146,707 122,699 146,707 122,699
Asset backed securities, available-for-sale (includes cash to
be invested) 1,488,837 1,481,661 1,488,837 1,481,661
Asset backed securities, pledged under repurchase
agrecments — 78,646 — 78,646
Reul estate related loans 570,916 428,370 570,916 428,370
Real estate fund units — 148,077 — 148,077
Derivative asscts 44,839 22,690 44,839 22,690
Financial Liabilities
CDO bonds payable 1,742,746 1,210,275 1,742,746 1,218,275
Bank loans 4,116,312 2,680,563 4,054,063 2,674,931
Repurchase agreements ad 75,490 - 75,490
Derivative liabilities —_ 212 — 212
Finance lease payable 26,709 25,800 26,709 25,800
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27. SHARE OPTION PLAN

In December 2003, the Group (with the approval of the Board of Directors and pursuant to the confidential information
memorandum dated August 2003) adopred a nonqualified share oprion plan (the “Group Option Plan”) for officers, Dirccrors,
employees, consubtants and advisors, including the Manager. In December 2003, for the purpose of compensating the Manager for
its successful efforts in raising capital for the Group, the Manager was granted vptions representing che right to acquire 1,185,767
ordinary shares at an exercise price of €10 per share {(number of shares and exercise price adjusted for share consolidation). The fair
value of the options at the date of granr was €0.2 million and was calculated by reference to an option pricing model.

In June 2004, following the [PO, the Manager was granted an additional 660,000 options at an exercise price of €12 per share.
The fair value of the addirional oprions at the date of granc was €0.2 million and was also calculated by reference 1o an option
pricing model. In June 2003, following the secondary public offering, the Manager was granted an additional 574,000 options at
an exercise price of €17.25 per share. The fair value of the additional options at the date of grant was €0.6 million. The Manager's
options represent an amount equal 1o 10% of the ordinary shares issued by the Group. The options granted to the Manager were
Fully vested on the dare of granr and expire ten years from the dace of issuance.

In February 2006, following che third public offering, the Manager was granted 1,282,300 options at €30.00 per share and,
pursuant to December 2005 Board action, an additional 857,142 oprions at an exercise price of €18.00 per share. The fair value of
the additienal options at the date of grand was €2.1 million and €4.8 million, respectively. The Manager's oprions represent an
amount equal to 10% of the ordinary shares issucd by the Group in respect of the public and private offerings thar preceded
the Drive acquisition. The options granted to the Manager were fully vested on the date of grant and expire ten years from che dare

of issuance.

In December 2006, following the fourth public offering, the Manager was granted un additional 1,783,748 options ar €37.00 per
share. The fair value of the additional options a1 the date of grant was €9.4 million. The Manager's options represent an amount
cqual 1o 10% of the ordinary shares issued by the Group. The options granted (o the Manager were fully vested on the date of
grant and expire ten years from the date of issuance.

The fair value at the date of grant of options granted to the Manager has been offset against the proceeds from issuance of ordinary

shares as the grant of options is a cost of capital.

Mavements in the number of share options ourstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

Number Exercived in the Exercised in Options Fair Vaiuc at
ol Options Year Linded 31 the Year Ended Remaining at Excreise Daze ol Grant Nate
Date of Grant Issued December 2006 31 December 2007 31 December 2007 Price € Expiration 000
31 Dec 03 1,185,767 (71,146) {129,838) 984,783 16,00 31 Dec-2013 200
23 Jun 04 660,000 — {59,400) 600,600 i2.00 23 Jun-2014 200
24 Jun 05 574,000 — {69,644) 504,356 17.25 24 Jun-2015 620
27 Jan 06 857,142 — {65,856) 791,286 18.00 27 Jan-2016 4,800
27 Jan 06 1,282,300 — {61,975) 1,220,325 30.00 27 Jan-2016 3100
| Dec 06 1,783,783 —_ {17,838) 1,765,945 37.00 1 Dec-2016 9,400
Total 6,342,992 (75.146) {404,551) 5,867,295 17.320

The weighted average fair value of the oprions ac dare of grant was determined using a trinomial model. The significant inputs into
the model were the weighted average share price at the grant date, the exercise price, volarilicy, expecred option life, dividend yield
and a risk fee rate. The volatility is measured at the standard deviation of continuousiy compounded share rerurns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share price since the date of che initial public offering of Eurocastle Investments Limited.



28. DIVIDENDS PAID & DECLARED

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006

€000 C000
Paid during the year : 114,292 73,803
Equity dividends on ordinary shares
Fourch quarcer dividend for 2006: €0.14 (2005: €0.37) 8,929 8.958
First quarter dividend for 2007: £0.45 (2006: €0.30) 28,711 13,682
Second quarter dividend for 2007: €0.60 (2006: €0.40) 38,295 18,272
Third quarter dividend for 2007: €0.60 (2006: €0.43) 38,357 19,643
First interim dividend for fourth quarter 2007: ENil {2006: €0.29) _ 13,248
Total 114,292 73.803
Fourth quarter dividend for 2007: €0.30 (2006: €0.14) 19,178 8,929

29. MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT & RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the Management Agreement with the Manager in August 2003, which provides for an initial term of ten
years with automaric three year extensions, subject to certain termination rights. The Management Agreement may be terminated
by the Group by payment of a termination fee, as defined in the Management Agreement, equal to the amount of management
fees earned by the Manager during the twelve consecutive calendar months immediately preceding the termination, upon the vote
of a majoriry of the holders of the outstanding ordinary shases. In addition, unless an arrangement is made becween the Group and
the Manager, incentive compensation (as outlined betow) will continue ro be payable to the Manager post termination. Pursuane
to the Managemem Agreement, the Manager, under the supervision of the Group’s Board of Directors, will formulate investment
strategies, arrange for the acquisition of assets, arrange for financing, monitor the performance of the Group's assets and provide
certain advisory, administrative and managerial services in connection with the operations of the Group. For performing these
services, the Group will pay the Manager an annual fee (payable monthly in arrear) of 1.5% of the gross equity of the Group, as
described in the Management Agreement,

The Management Agreement provides that the Group will reimburse the Manager for various expenses incurred by the Manager
or its officers, employces and agents on the Group’s behalf, including the cosc of legal, acconnting, rax, auditing, finance,
administrative, asset management, property management and ocher similar services rendered for the Group by providers retained
by the Manager or, if provided by the Manager’s or its affiliaces’ employees, in amounts which are no greater than those that would
be payable to external professionals or consulrants engaged to perform such services pursuant o agreements negotiated on an

arms-lengeh basis. Such expenses have been included in the consalidared income starement.

To provide an incentive for the Manager to enhance the value of the Group's ordinary stock, the Manager is entitled to receive
incentive compensation on a cumularive, bur not compounding, basis (but not subject to clawback) in an amount equal 1o the
product of (A) 25% of the curo amount by which (1) funds from eperations (“FFO") of the Group before the incentive compensa-
tion per ordinary share, exceeds (2) an amount equal 1o (a) the weighred average of the price per ordinary share in any offerings by
the Group (adjusted for any prior capital dividends or distributions) multiplied by (b) a simple interest rate of eight percent (8%)
per annum multiplied by (B} the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during such period.

FFO is used ro compute the Company’s incentive compensation to the Manager. FFQ, for these purposes, represents net income
(computed in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards), excluding changes in fair value of investment
properties net of attribuable deferred taxation, changes in fair value of incerest rare swaps that are taken to the income statement,
unrealised movements on currency swaps {net of transtarion gains/losses of related assets) and mark-to-marker fluctuations in real
estate fund units.
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At 31 December 2007, management fees, incenrive fees and expense reimbursements of approximarely €27.0 million (Note 22)
{31 December 2006: €7.5 million) were duc o the Manager., For the year ended 31 December 2007 managemenc fees of
€21.9 million (31 December 2006: €12.1. million), incentive fees of €22.2 million (31 December 2006: €2.7 million), and expense
reimbursemencs of €7.0 million (31 December 2006: €3.9 million) were charged to the income starement.

Total annual remuneration for Eurocastle directors is €0.2 million payable quarterly in equal instalments. Wesley R. Edens and
Randal A, Nardone do not receive any remuncration from the Group.

As stated in note 24, the Group issued 4,000 shares to Directors in their capacity as Directors of the company. The shares issued
to the Directors were non-cash shares, and were issued with nil proceeds. These shares were accounted for ar fair value at grant date
and recognised through the income statement.

30. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
The Group operates in one geographical segment, being Europe, The Group has conducted business through three primary
segments: debrt investments, real estare fund unics and investment propertics,

Summary financial data of the Group's business segments is provided below:
I

Debt Real Estate  Investment Total
investment Fund Units Properties Unaliocated Eurocastie
Year Ended 31 December 2007 €000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Revenue 139,355 17,331 369,498 I 526,505
Other opcrating (lossMincome (1,084) 16,751 48,265 — 63,932
lterest expense {104,455) {2,392) (174,567) — {281,414)
Other operating expenses (3,493) {657) (99,884) (49,202) (153,236)
Segment result 30,323 31,033 143,312 (48,881) 155,787
Taxation expense - {124) (20,748} _ (20,872)
Net profit 30,323 30,909 122,564 (48,881) 124,915
Decreasel{increase) in fair values 507 {16,751) (48,266} — (64,510)
Realised gains on sale of investment
properties and real estate fund units - 19,632 76,868 - 96,500
Deferred tax — —_ 19,381 —_ 19,381
Funds from operations 30,830 33,790 170,547 {48,881) 186,286
Debt Real Estate Investment “Towal
Investment Vund Units Propertics Unallocated Eurocastle
Year Ended 31 December 2006 €000 000 C'og0 C'000 C'ooo
Revenue 93,013 18,661 187,052 237 298,963
Other operating income/(loss) 164 (3,054) 77.694 — 74,804
Interest expense (63,434) {6.466) (80,382) _— (150,282)
Other operating cxpenses {2,10%) (9Mm (52,499 {21,234) (75.928)
Segment result 17,638 9,051 131,865 {20,997) 147,557
Taxation expense — — (3,738) — (3.738)
Net profit 27,638 9.051 128,127 (20,997) 143,319
[Deereasef{increase) in fair values —_— 3,054 (77.694) — (74,640)
Realised gains on sale of real estate fund units — 2,163 — -— 2,163
Deferred tax —_ — 3,366 — 3,366

Funds from operations 27,638 14,268 53,799 {20,997) 74,708
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Debt Real Estate tnvestment Total

Investment Fund Units Praperties Unallocated Eurocastle
As at 31 December 2007 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Total assets 2,140,672 32 5,360,189 7,302 7,508,195
Total liabilities {2,001,689) (182} (3,977,004) {28,738) (6,007,613}
Segment net assets 136,983 (150} 1,383,185 {21,436) 1,500,582
Tax liability —_— {124) (26,764) —_ {26,888)
Minority intcrest 2 {4) — - {8)
Net assets 138,981 {278) 1,356,421 {21,436) 1,473,688

Diche Real Estate Investment “Total
Invesiment Fund Uniis Prapertics Unallocated Eurocasile

As at 31 December 2006 Cc'000 (i} 000 ('000 C'000
Toral assets 2,011,490 158,784 3,461,857 30,249 5,662,330
Total liabilities (1,436,424) (28,027) (2,540,696) (10,492) (4,085.639)
Segment net assets 575,066 60,757 921,164 19,757 1,576,741
Tax liability — {540) {5.476) — (6.016)
Minority intetest () (4) — — (@)
Net assets 575,064 60,213 915.685 19,757 1,570,719

31. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
The legal entity group structure of the Group is designed to support the Group's businesses within an efficient legal, tax,
regulatory and funding framework.

The significant operating subsidiaries, in which the Group owns directly or indirectly a 1009 equity interest, are listed by jurisdic-

tion below:

Luxembourg:

Turret Lux Participation s.a.rb.
Zama (Windhoek) sa.rl.
Sulzbach (Bridge} s.a.rl.
Wiesbaden (Bridge) s.a.rl.
Berlin (Bridge) s.a.r.l,
Galtuspark (Bridge) s.a.r.l.
Dusseldorf Bridge) s.a.r.l.
Eschborn (Bridge) s.a.r.l.
Superstella s.a.rd.

Tannenberg s.a.rl.

Mars PropCo 2-40 s.a.r.l. (39 real estate holding companies numbered 2-40)
Drive s.a.r.l.

Finial s.a.r.1,
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Germany:

ECTGPROPI {formerly known as Dresdner Grund-Fonds)
Shortwave Acquisition GmbH

Longwave Acquisition GmbH

Bastion GmbH & Co.KG

Belfry GmbH & Co.KG

Truss Gabll & Co.KG

Additionzlly, che Group has invesiments in Eurccastle Funding Limired, Eurocastle CDO | PLC, Eurocastle CDO 1
PLC, Eurocaside CDO il PLC, Eurocastle CDO IV PLC, Duncannon CRE CDO 1 PLC and FECO SUB 5PV PLC char it

consolidates in accordance with SIC 12.

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group has eliminated all its mark-to-market and any full recourse exposure on it debt invesement portfolio by repaying
or unwinding unsecured bank credit facilities, repurchase agreements and total return swap financings and by rencgotiating irs
bank barrowings.

In January 2008, the CDO IV term financing was extended with a multi-currency term loan for approximarely €127 million
(€165 million was drawn as at 31 December 2007) maturing an | December 2009 wo finance certain ABS and loan investments in
the debt portfolio. This facility replicates in part the features of a rraditional CDO financing by insulating the borrower from
mark-to-market risk during the term of the facility and by using amongst other things a rating agency model o determine the level
of equity contribution the Group will need to provide to maintain the senior financing levels based on an AAA attachment poine.
The face margin for this facility is Euribor +0.55 per cent.

The Group refinanced a 364 facility into a term loan maturing on 30 Seprember 2009 with recourse limited w €30 million, from
the Group. The outstanding amount under chis facility is currently approximartely €107 million (€59.3 million as at 3i December
2007) and the debt investments securing this loan are approximately €129 million (par amount) at a blended margin of Euribor
+1.74 per cent. There are no mark-to-market covenants during the term of this facilicy.

33. COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no commitmenis thar were nor disclosed in these financial statcments,
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Forward-Looking Statements

This release contains statements that constinute forward-looking starements. Such forward-kioking siatementy relate w, among other things, future commirments 1o acquire real estaie and
achievement of zequisition 1argers, wvailability of attractive investment opporiunities, mechods of funding parcfalios. timing uf completion of acquisitions, the aperating peefurmance of our
investments and financing necds. Furward-looking statements are generally identifiable by use of forward-looking terminology such as "may™, "will”™, “should”, “potential ™, "intend”, "expect”.
belicve™, "contd™, “project”™, “predict”, “continue™, *plan®, “forecast™ or other similar words or expressions,
Forward-looking statements arc based on certain assumprions, discuss future epectations, describe future plans and strategies. contain projections of results of operations or of financial
condition ar state other furward-looking informacion. Our ability 1 predice results or the acrual effece of future plans ar strategies is limited. Although we helieve thar che expeciations
reflected in such forwacd-lonking statements are bused on reasonzble 2ssumptions, wur actual resules and performance may differ materially fram chose sex forth in the forward-looking

“endeaveur”, “seek”, “anticipare”, “estimare”, “averestimare”, “underestimace”,

scatements, These forward-looking statements are subject w risks, uncertainties and other fciors thar may cause our actual tesules in future periods 1o differ materially from forecasted resuls
of stated expectations, including the #isk that leasing markets will continue w be strong or that Eurocastle will be able w achieve ity rargets regarding upezational growth pariiculardy any
increase in Jeasing of vacant space on acceprable terms or take advantage of widening credit spreads 1o acquire good qualicy collateral at discounced prices.
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EUROCASTLE INVESTMENT LIMITED (the "Company"}
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

r'-j':":"\',‘{\»’:_"D

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders of the Company will be held athegenC)

tELh]

Court, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 IWW on 4 June 2008 at 2.00 p.m. (CET) for the purposcsoﬁ

resolutions and resolution 5 will be proposed as a spectal resolution:

i
e AT

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1

To receive and consider the profit and loss account and balance sheet of the Company and the reports of the Directors and
the Auditors thereon for the year ended 31 December 2007,

To re-elect Dr. Udo Scheifel and Dr. Simon J Thornton as Directors.

To reappoint Ernst & Young LLP, as Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the
conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and authorise the Directors to

determine their remuneration.

EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS

Share Buyback Authority

THAT, the Company be authorised unconditionally and generally for the purpose of the Companies (Purchase of Own
Shares) Ordinance. 1998 to make market purchases (within the meaning of section 5 of that Ordinance) of ordinary shares
of no par value in the capital of the Company on such terms and in such manner as the directors may from time to time

4

determine, provided that:

4.1
4.2

4.3

44

the maximum number of shares authorised to be purchased is 19,178.290;
the minimum price which may be paid for a share is €0.01;

the maximum price which may be paid for a share is an amount equal to 95% of the net asset value per share, as sel
out in the Company’s latest published quarterly results;

such authority shall expire on a date being the earlier of, ¢ither 18 months from the date of this resolution or at the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company, unless such authority is varied, revoked or renewed prior to such
date by a ordinary resolution of the Company in general mecting; and

the Company may make a contract to purchasc ordinary shares under such authority prior 1o its expiry which will
or may be executed wholly or partly after its expiration and the Company may make a purchase of ordinary shares
pursuant to any such contract.

Amendment of the Articles of Association

5

THAT, the articles of association of the Company be amended as follows:

5.1

The following definitions be inserted in the definitions section:

“Refevant Exchange™ meaning any stock exchange or market on which shares may be listed and/or traded
(including Euronext Amsterdam and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange); and

“Eurenext Amsterdam” meaning Euronext Amsterdam by NYSE Euronext,
Article 2(11) be amended to read as follows:

‘The expressions “communication” and “clectronic communication™ shall include, without limitation, e-mail,
facsimile, CD-Rom, audio tape and telephone transmission and (in the case of electronic communication by the
Company in accordance with Article 34(6)) publication on a web site.’

0 AS=7

considering and, if thought fit passing the follewing resolutions, of which resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4 will be proposed as g_;rq)m‘ar) o

“



5.3

5.4

5.8

5.6

5.7

58

5.9

A new Article 2(12) be inserted to read as follows:

“The expression “in writing” shall mean written or produced by any substitute for writing or partly one and partly
another including (but only 1o the extent that the recipicnt (if not the Company) has requested or agreed) clectronic
communication.’

Article 15(1) be amended by inserting the words:

‘or despatched by other reasonable means as the Board thinks fit’ afler the phrase ‘... general nature of the business
10 be transacted shall be given by notice sent by post by Secretary or other officer of the Company or any other
person appointed in that behalf by the Board...".

New Articles 16(3) and (4) be inscrted to read as follows:

“16.3 A Member participating by video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or telephonic means of
communication in a meeting shall be treated as forming part of the quorum of that meeting provided that the
Members present at the meeting can hear and speak to the participating Member.

16.4 A video link or telephone conference call or other electronic or lelephonic means of communication in which a
quorum of Members participates and all participants can hear and speak to each other shall be a valid meeting
which shall be deemed to take piace where the chairman is present unless the Members resolve otherwise.’

Article 16(10) be amended by inserting the words:

‘or electronic means, or any combination thereof” afier the phrase ‘including the use of ballot or voting papers or
tickets....".

Article 34(1) be amended 1o read as follows:

‘A notice may be given by the Company to any Member personally or by sending it by prepaid post (or despatching
it by other reasonable means as the Board thinks fit) addressed 10 such Member al his registered address or if he
desires that notices shall be sent to some other address or person to the address or person nominated for such
purpose where appropriate, sending it using electronic communications to an address notified by the Member
concerned to the Company for that purpose or by publication on a website or by any other means authorised in
writing by the Member concerned. Notices to be posted to addresses outside the Channel Islands and the United
Kingdom shall so far as practicable be forwarded by prepaid airmail.’

Article 34(3) be amended by deleting the phrase:
‘at least one UK national newspaper and ...,
and inserting the words:

‘accordance with the rules of any Relevant Exchange and in’ after the phrase ‘A notice given by advertisement
shall be published in....’

A new Article 34(12) be inserted to read as follows:

*34.12 An electronic communication shall be deemed to have been received by the intended recipient 24 hours after
it was transmitted, and in proving such receipt it shall be sufficient to show that such notice, document or

information was properly addressed.’

By order of the Board
International Administration (Guernsey) Limited

Secretary
Dated 9 May 2008

Registered Office;
c/o International Administration (Guernsey) Limited
Regency Court

Glategny Esplanade
St Peter Port
Guernsey, GY1 I1WW
Channel] Islands

[



NOTES:

L.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Mecting is entitled to appoint a proxy (or proxies) to
attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not to be a member of the Company. A form of proxy is attached
which should be completed in accordance with the instructions printed on it. The appoiniment of a proxy will not
prevent a member from subsequently attending and veting at the meeting in person. If you do not intend to attend
the meeting, please complete and return the form of proxy as soon as possible.

To be effective a form of proxy, and any power of attorney or other authority under which it is executed (or a duly
certified copy of any such power or authority), must be deposited at the offices of the Company’s Registrar, Anson
Registrars Limited, PO BOX 426, Anson Place, Mill Court, La Charroterie, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3WX
(Tel: +44 1481 711301, Fax: +44 1481 729829) not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or
adjourned meeting or (in the case of a poll taken otherwise than at or on the same day as the meeting or adjourned
meeting) for the taking of the poll at which it is to be used.

Copics of all terms and conditions of appointment of Directors of the Company arc available for inspection at the
Company’s registered office during business hours on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays
excluded) and will also be available for inspection at the place of the meeting for 15 minutes before and during the

meeting.

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeling, and the number of votes which may be cast thereat,
will be determined by reference to the Company’s register of members 48 hours before the time of the meeting or,
if the meeting is adjourned, before the time fixed for the adjourncd meeting (as the case may be). In each case,
changes to the register of members after such time will be disregarded.

Shareholders holding their shares through Euroclear Nederland via banks and brokers are not included in the
register of members - such shares are included in the register of members under the name of Euroclear Nederland.
If shareholders who hold their shares through Euroclear Nedertand wish to (i) attend the Annual General Meeting
or {ii} appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote en their behalf or (iii) give voting instructions without attending
the meeting, they must instruct Euroclear Nederland accordingly. To do this, shareholders are advised to confact
their bank or broker as soon as possible and advise them which of the three options they prefer.

Shareholders holding their shares through Euroclear Nederland and who indicate they wish to atiend the Annual
General Meeting will not receive an admittance card. They may therefore be asked to identify themselves at the
Annual General Meeting using a valid passport, identity card or driving licence.



EUROCASTLE INVESTMENT LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY

FOR USE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 4 JUNE 2008.

g2 -29%27

{in Block Capitals})

being a member/members of Eurocastle Investment Limited HEREBY APPOINT the Chairman of the

Meeting or failing him

as my/our proxy lo vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Eurocastle
Investment Limited to be held at Regency Court, Glategny Esplanade, $t Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 IWW on
4 June 2008 at 2.00 p.m. (CET) and at any adjournment thereof. Liwe instruct my/four proxy o volte as
indicated below in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting and at his/her
discretion in respect of any other business {including amendments to resolutions) which may come before the

Annual General Meeting,

IORDINARY BUSINESS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

1 An ordinary resolution to receive and consider the
profit and loss account and balance sheet of the
Company, and the reports ol the Directors and the
Auditors thereon for the year ended 31 December
2007.

28]

An ordinary resolution to re-elect Dr. Udo Scheffel
and Dr. Simon ! Thornton as Directors,

3 An otrdinary resotution to reappoint Emst & Young
LLP as Auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of this meeting unul the
conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounts are laid before the Company and
authorise the Directors to determine their
remuneration,

EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS

FOR

AGAINST

ABSTAIN

4 An ordinary resolution (o approve the
authorization of the Company to make market
purchases of ordinary shares of the Company.

5 A special resolution Lo approve the amendments to
the Articles of Association.




NOTES

1.

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes how you wish the proxy to vote. In the absence of
any instructions, the proxy may vote or abstain as he or she thinks fit on the resolutions specified
above.

If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman as your proxy you should delete the words
“the Chairman of the Meeting or failing him”, insert your own choice in the space provided and initial
the amendment. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

Any alterations to this Proxy Form should be initialled.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney
duly authorised in writing or if the appointer is a corporation either under the common seal or under
the hand of a duly autherised officer or attorney and need not be witnessed.

In the case of joint holdings the signature of any holder is sufficient but the vote of the senior holder
who tenders a vote (whether in person or by proxy) shall be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint
holders; for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which names stand in the register
of members.

If you complete and return this Form of Proxy, it will not prevent you from attending in person and
voting at the Meeting should you subsequently decide to do so.

Please return this Form of Proxy in accardance with the instructions set out in the note 2 to the Notice
of the Meeting.
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EUROCASTLE INVESTMENT LIMITED

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Contact:

International Administration (Guernsey) Limited
Company Administrator

Attn: Mark Woodall

Tel: +44 1481 723450

Eurocastle Announces Availability of Annual Report

Guernsey. 30 April 2008 — Eurocastle Investment Limited (Frankfurt Stock Exchange: EUII and
Euronext Amsterdam: ECT) announces that its 2007 annual report and year-end financials are now
available for inspection on the investor relations section of Eurocastle’s website
(www.eurocastleinv.com), at the offices of the Company’s paying agent in the Netherlands (call
ABN AMRO Service desk at + 31 7657 99455) and at its registered office Monday through Friday
(excluding any public holiday) during normal business hours. The Company’s registered office is
located at:

Regency Court
Glategny Esplanade
St Peter Port
Guernsey GY1 1WW

About Eurocastle

Eurocastle Investment Limited is an investment company which primarily owns and manages
German commercial real estate assets. The Company is Euro denominated and is listed on
Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol “EUI1” and on Euronext Amsterdam under the
symbol “ECT.” Eurocastle is managed by an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC, a leading
global alternative asset manager. For more information regarding Eurocastle Investment Limited
and to be added to our email distribution list, please visit www.eurocastleinv.com.




EUROCASTLE INVESTMENT LIMITED

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Contact:

International Administration (Guemsey) Limited
Company Administrator

Attn: Mark Woodall

Tel: +44 1481 723450

Eurocastle 2008 AGM Results

Guernsey. 5 June 2008 — Eurocastle Investment Limited (Frankfurt Stock Exchange: EUIl and
Euronext Amsterdam: ECT) announces the results of its 2008 Annual General Meeting held
yesterday, 4 June 2008. All resolutions tabled before the meeting in accordance with the Notice of
Annual General Meeting circulated to shareholders on 6 May 2008 were carried. A copy of this
Notice is available on Eurocastle’s website at www.eurocastleinv.com.

About Eurocastle

Eurocastle Investment Limited is an investment company which primarily owns and manages
German commercial real estate assets. The Company is Euro denominated and is listed on
Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol “EUI1” and on Euronext Amsterdam under the
symbol “ECT.” Eurocastle is managed by an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC, a global
alternative asset manager with approximately $34.2 billion in assets under management as of
March 31, 2008. For more information regarding Eurocastle Investment Limited and to be added
to our email distribution list, please visit www.eurocastleinv.com.
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Contact:

International Administration (Guemsey) Limited
Company Administrator

Attn: Mark Woodall

Tel: +44 1481 723450

Eurocastle Announces Annual General Meeting

Guemsey. 9 May 2008 — Eurocastle Investment Limited (Frankfurt Stock Exchange: EUII and
Euronext Amsterdam: ECT) announces the Company will hold its Annual General Meeting on
Wednesday, 4 June 2008, at the Company’s registered office at 2:00 p.m. (CET). Notices and
proxy statements have been mailed out to all shareholders on record as of 6 May 2008.

About Eurocastle

Eurocastle Investment Limited is an investment company which primarily owns and manages
German commercial real estate assets. The Company is Euro denominated and is listed on
Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol “EUI1” and on Euronext Amsterdam under the
symbol “ECT.” Eurocastle is managed by an affiliate of Fortress Investment Group LLC, a leading
global alternative asset manager. For more information regarding Eurocastle Investment Limited
and to be added to our email distribution list, please visit www.eurocastleinv.com.




